THE CORE OF THE VOIR DIRE TESTIMONY OF
M. DOUGLAS REED, PH.D. Exhibit-3
THE OHIO ATTORNEY GENERAL'’S LEADING EXPERT
CONCERNING THE MIND AND BELIEFS OF
FRANK P. WOOD

Dr. Reed, the State s Leading Expert, is a licensed clinical psychologist (Tp.480, Ln.1-2) who
spent his entire thirty-year career working with pedophiles and sociopaths (Tp.478, Ln.16-18).
Of my own volition, Dr. Reed put me through a battery of psychological tests that are readily
accepted by the working psychiatric community (Tp.465-480). Below is the core of his reliable
findings and conclusions regarding my mind and beliefs.

1)} *** there is no sexual history of sexual desire or contact with minors, even when he was
a minor. His first sexual contact was when he was eighteen, so he has no — he has none of
the typical drives that a pedophile would have or the typical abuser would have towards
minor children (Tp.468, Ln.25-Tp.469, Ln.5).

Note: Lost my virginity on my 18" birthday to a beautiful, intelligent, and classy woman.

2) His Sexual Behavior Inventory shows that he has normal, healthy sexual thoughts, and if
you could ~ if you consider healthy would be masturbating to an adult person, rather ] a
fantasy of an adult rather than that of a minor (Tp.469, Ln.6-10).

Note: What can I say? I'm a guy!

3) His preferences are heterosexual. He has sexual attraction only to adult women (Tp.469,
Ln. 11-12). [Emphasis added).

Note: That should quash a few hopeful rumors in prison that turned hateful,
4) He’s not sexually compulsive or addicted, in my professional opinion (Tp.469, Ln.13-
14).
5) His sexual behavior is under his control. He is not out of control, compulsive (Tp.469,
Ln.15-16).

Note: As ‘trust’ means to allow without fear, you can trust a man with self-control and no vices.

6) His mental exam status indicated he has no organic brain damage, he is able to think
straight, he’s above average in intelligence (Tp.469, Ln.17-19).
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Note: Obviously, I am too intelligent to commit such ignorant and heinous acts. Further, when
Dr. Reed concluded this statement, the Court Reporter stopped her typing and everyone in the
courtroom looked straight at me with eyes wide open and full of worry. I would have to say that,
at that very moment, they knew they screwed up.

7) The conclusions from the Minnesota Multiphasic Personality Inventory was that he had
no psychopathology; none of the ten clinical scales were elevated (Tp.473, Ln.4-8).

Note: The Minnesota Multiphasic Personal Inventory (MMPI) is a reliable scientific instrument
of psychological analysis and discovery.

8) He does not see himself as narcistic, which is an important finding, and he, he does not
come across — he does not test as being narcistic (Tp.474, Ln.9-10).

Note: Narcissism is an important part of the FBI’s profile for a real sex offender.

9) He does use rationalization and externalization as defense mechanisms (Tp.474, Ln.9-
10).

Note: In problem solving, I am well adept at separating myself from situation to analyze it.
10) He has high ego strength (Tp.474, Ln.11).
Note: I am a confident man.
11) In my professional opinion, to a degree of psychological certainty, Frank Wood does not
meet the diagnostic criteria for pedophilia. He does not endorse the three core beliefs or

rationalizations used by pedophiles to justify their illegal behavior (Tp.475, Ln.2-7).

Note: Although I still do not know what these beliefs and rationalizations are, Dr. Reed was still
able to extrapolate this from my mind.

12) He has no history, apart from the index offense charges, of sexual behavior with a minor,
even when he was a minor (Tp.475, Ln.8-10).

Note: Never have and never will.
13) Mr. Wood is not a sociopath or psychopath (Tp.475, Ln.11).

Note: To the contrary, I am a compassionate and empathic man,
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14) He does not match the profile for a psychopath. ***. He is not slick, conning, or
manipulative (Tp.475, Ln.14-17).

Note: I am neither a pathological liar, deceiver, nor manipulator.

15) He does not have a stash of child pornography. If he were to be someone who would be a
serious or, historically, sex abuser type, he would undoubtedly have had a stash. In my
thirty years working with pedophiles and sociopaths, they all have had a stash
somewhere. He did not have any (Tp.475, Ln.19-24).

Note: Both of my houses were searched by either Officer McCourt and/or Det. Kollar (Tp.452,
Ln.4-9), (Affidavit: Exhibit-04, p.12).

16) He has no organic brain impairment which keeps him from knowing right from wrong.
Everything he believes and espouses would be violated if he were to touch a child
sexually (Tp.475, Ln.25-Tp.476, Ln.3). [Emphasis added).

Note: Not only do I possess a strong moral fiber and conscience, as

Belief determines behavior,
-Max Lucado

I am psychologically prohibited from harming a child or someone I love!!!

17) In my professional opinion, he is also not a situational pedophile. ***, He was being
sexually active regularly, therefore, he would not have needed to turn to a prepubescent
child (Tp.476, Ln.4-10). [Emphasis added).

Note: To do so would be disgusting and dishonorable. ‘Honor’ means respecting others and
ourselves in our thoughts, speech, and actions.

18) He has no mental illness, no mental disorder according to the MMPI-2, Mental Status
Exam. None of the ten clinical scales were elevated to the clinical range (Tp.476, Ln.11-
14).

Note: Nice to know I am sane, for only a crazy nut would harm a child.

19) He’s not in a job where he is usually brought into contact with minors, so there’s no —
there’s no predatory deductive manner there (Tp.477, Ln.5-7).
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Note: In my line of work, I took what was broken, fixed it, and gave it back. This should reveal
more of the core of the man I am.

20) Those were my conclusions and opinions (Tp.477, Ln.8).

Note: Reader, now you see why Judge Collier stated that Dr. Reed's findings and conclusions
“aren’t relevant” (Tp.481, Ln.10-11), and why he and Pros. Eisenhower refused to allow for Dr.
Reed to testify before the Court-declared “cynical” Jury (Tp.135, Ln.7-11) with its Court-elected
Juror who was “molested” in her youth (Affidavit: Exhibit-31), and its Medina City elementary
school teacher.

3

Assembled from the face of my materially altered and incomplete Trial Record regarding State of
Ohio v. Frank P. Wood, Medina County Case No. 05 CR0365.

Frank P. Wood (#A504-107)
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firse preemptory challenge.” Then I'Il ask ocounial
for thea Defandant, "3iz, your first pPrEampLocy
challengs.™ Then we'll go to your second and tnipa
and s2 on. Obrleusly, 1f you both pass, if wa get

LLCN -] in a row, we've got what we nead.

I Intend @n picking two alternates. This ls

goling to be & week, wa could loms them, o I'm Qoing

to have twe altermates on this thing and 9o that
way., '

One othar question, and I &m so hesitsnr to ask
this, and I only da It becavss 1f I don't P'01 kiex
®yaslf latmr. 1 don't kfow anything about Tha case
sncept for what [ taa, ln‘d you all have busn vary
kind to me In glvisg se [nformstion, #nd I %now Chese

4re tough cspes. Havs yu'u all talbed ac all about

negotistions In tnis case?

ng. EISEURCHER: Your messr,
inttially made an offer ang I have ==

THE CoumrT: Ara you all
okay with that? Do you fael you nesd to talh more?
Aza you whers you nesd to be? I'm Just ciEious as to
whether you'rs where you nesd ©o bu.

HR. GREEN: Thera was an

offsr By tha prosscutor.

THE coumt: I just want to
23
WA, GREEN: 1 just vanted
to maka suge,
THE COURT: Cortalnly,
MR, GREEN: . 1 have ssan

some Courts just go boom, boosm, boom, buos,

THE COURT: 1've bhasn in
¥oUr apot where ['ve shown up in foreigm courta - and
that's vhat I am t0 you =~ and have basn Elabbargasted
and kind of taken 4back. 1f you'rte in a spot whate
you'te nac exaccly sure about the procedure, about
what 1I'm doing, dz not hesizate ta go, "Hey, help me
QUE, " bacauss [ want co help you Quys out. This is
your case now, All right! This lsn't my case
anymgra. 1k's besh my case Up Till nows now Bt's
yours.

1ou're gaod h-nrl._ you're rusl good lawyers.
This la & hard cases Lit's a aifficult thing, I llke

lavyars, I like what you do, and I Like you

pParsonally, The courtroom's your cpurtroom, 1if
there's & way that I can Da halpful to you with
tagard to any of tha proceducal aspects, with ragasd
o what's going on hare, don't hasitate to ask.
Chrristine, my ssslicent, or Barh, Ay bailife, they'ce
a2 good a8 it gets fer balng halpful. wa'll werk sur

way through this, 1 promlse.
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Bake pure. I would hate ‘baing in » pasicion whezw
wa'zn thres or four days :Lntu this and, “On, ay goah,
you know, we snould hava talked abouz thlas.* And not
that I'm foreseaing :!u:.‘ but if I can get to that
Row, I can get to that now. I've gat four othar
cases I's supposed to try in sddition to this cna,
that I's golng o be saending chez homs right now =
and that's oksy, you'sa the centar of my univarse
here - but I vant to make surs that you ajl have had
the full epportunicy to talk sbout this and you Ceal
ceafartable about the poaltlon you'ze im. Agaln, L'm
fot trying to talk you inte dokng anything, I Juse
want to make sute that I 'sald thls so that I'm clear
that you'vs 4t lesst had scms discussion with rugard

to plea segotiations.

MR, GALEN: Judge, one
question.

THE COURT: sle.

HA. GAEEW: T Tha voir diza.

when yaou Talhed sbout rounds, I assume if ona ls
exarcised ==

THE COURT: A new person
comes down, they ait, I talk to them a litctle while,
you a3k them guastiens, 4nd than to I'll turm to you

now and ask for your first preempuery.

24
And thank you for your sttention
Ars you all resdy?

H3. EISENHONER: I just have one
=0re quastion. The Dafandant hes lndicated that he's
== he say or may nob call Dr. Read am an aapare. 1
flled a wotlon to exclude his testisony on relavanca,
4nd sametime before opaning. I would appreciate
whathar 1 =~ we can talk about that in opeaing er
nat.

THE CounT: Let's get
through volr dire and ses what we uant to do,
{Wheroupon, voir dife commanced in the

ourtrooa.}
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(CONTINUATION OF THE PROCCEDINGE OF THE
ARBOVE-CAPTIONED CASE DN TUESDAY, THE 25TH DAY oF
AFAIL 2006, COMMENCING AT APPAOKIMATILY 2100 P.NM.)

THE COURT: ’ Come on ln and
e 3setad, folka. They'rs all standing for you eut
af respect.

Homencazily you will be sworn ia as jurors in
the caze, snd whan that occurs, 48 & matfer of
Fuspact, the attorneys sad the partise, the folks wha
414 in the spurtreom, will stand wp for you. The
best way of handling that = it*s a little
uscgmforcable, [ imsgine = is t.u gat in here and just
#it down. That kind of signals to ma I can tell
sverybady ta sit down n_ad it works out fina. That's
why they do thats ic iy eradiclon.

Hy Dalilif Ls nov golng Lo swear you in. You'‘re
901i0g to take a sepirste wvsth, The [icst oath you
took was o answer the guestlons of the velr dire
honestly and truthfully, ang new you'rs going to taks
an oath a» jurors.

(Wheceupon, the twslve mambars of the Jury and
two Jlternates were then and there swarn Im by the
BALLIEE. ¢

THE COURT: Hava & seat,

27
you tind thems and than you're qoing to beylh to
delibsrate. 1t would be-unfair for yeuw to bagln to
dellberate before you have sverything you nesd to do
se. You'd be going off without teally belng
praparad,

%0 I suggest to ysu, chal when you're is the
jury room, coming and gelng, you'ra going to spend a
lot of tima togethar ovaé the newt wesk, talk about
your family, talk about the weathaz, talk sbout the
really good Clavelsnd Cavaliera, anything alae you
want to talk about. In fact, puspessly divert
yourselves frem talking sbout the case or tha
partied, what’s going on, Okay? Good.

You have to eaplabn thin Iwpertesnt rule to your
tsally and friends whan you get hose tonlght. You
eap't talk about chis -Itlh your famlly or your
friends or anyons else while you'se & Juroz Ln & case
like this. You can, whan you go hose conight,
saplaln to your Camlly and fyiends that ¥YOu are a8
Jurer in & criminal case In Judge Collies’s
courtrocm; otharwlse, you camnst discuss it. That's
9olng te meke you sesm lncredibly important to your
famlly and Crlands, at least until after the caze )s
ovar, right? Right.

Once this cess is compluted and the verdlct is
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Esdk3. I'vs got to glva“you & couple of remarhy and
than wa‘fe going to movelon. Thess are Instruetions.

It's jmportant that-you be faly and atpeative
thfoughout the course of ‘the trial.

Ba pot discuss this case among yourselves or
v_m. anyons elew.

Do poc foerm or eapress an opinlon about ehis
case untll all tha evidence is in, you get my
instructions of lav, and you bagin your deliberations
in the jury room.

It might Be curioys for you to wnasrstand, to
wonder why it iz you cen’t talk sbout this easw, avan
among yourselves while tHe case is going on. Nere's
the resson.

In 8 matisr of two nl: thees ninutas you'cre golng
te ges the opaning -:n--.mt. of the 3tate ol Ohle:
Than tha opening statesent from Mr. Gream,
Foprezenting the Dc!nmn;u than the witneases, the
State will call their witnesses Ifirst and Hr. Graan
Bay ¢all his witnesses altarwards - that's going to
Cake p:o.bably the rest of this wesk; than you'rs
going te ger the closimg .nguunu of both the Stata
and tha Defsnpdant: than you'se gaing ta get ay jury
Snstructions, tallling you whet the Jaw ks in this

cipn that you're galng to be applying to the facts as

"
tesd Lln open court, I will abaolve you froa cthis
sasonitlon, and at that peint you can talk to the
patties, the sttorneys, the witnessas, the prass.
You cam talk co parfect l'uanqlrl oA the street Lf
you wint to and tall them asbout your jury duty. It's
okay, all righe? 1

Alye, bBechuse yw'n: Amsrican citizens, if you
Secide that you don't want to Calk to anybody abeus
uhat went on here, WhAE your thoughts are, you can
tell people to buss off.  That's your right and jt's
noas of thelr Busineas unless you meks it that way.
You'rs Amerigcan ¢itizens. You have the right ta ba
sbls to say so. You chodse that on your own, but
you'll only be frae to maie that choice sfter the
caEs 1s over.

¥e have ot least r.m:i mgmbars of ths presa hetre
tadsy, and thsy're going Itn ba covering tha trial.
It*s not unysusl that ml'y come in and cover cases,
bat it causes a pnr\:iml-‘t problam I've got to talk
to you about. TYou'rs golag to mot taad the NeVEpApeT
for the nent fouple of days. It is not unvsual far
the newspspers o wrlte sbout what's geing on in tha
case snd refermnce back to othar facta snd
infermation that aren‘t u'nuuruy in thiy casas,

Tight? i'm not golng te say that they'se urong, bukt




OHIO INNOCENCE PROJECT (OIP)  Exhibit-36

APPLICATION
NaME: Frank P. Wood
INMATE NUMBER: _ A504-107 D;‘\TEOF BIRTH: 12/01/67
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER:  073-58-0327

CURRENT CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION AND ADDRESS:

Grafton Correctional Institution

2500 S. Avon Belden Rd.

Grafton, Ohio 44044

CASE MANAGER NAME AND PHONE NUMBER: Ms- Gentile (440) 748-5000

COUNTY OF CoNnvVICTION: Medina

ARRESTING POLICE DEPT.: Medina City Police Department

DATE oF ConvicTioN: _May 1, 2006

CoURT CASE DOCKET NUMBER: 05CR0365

Please return this application to:
Ohio Innocence Project
P.O. Box 210040
Cincinnati, OH 45221

Please complete this application as fully as possible.
If you do not know the answer to a question, you may leave it blank.

NOTICE: The Ohio Innocence Project and the Ohio Public Defenders (OPD) Wrongful
Conviction Unit have signed a Joint Litigation, Common Interest, and Confidentiality
Agreement. This means that at times our office and the OPD Wrongful Conviction Unit
may share information about cases to avoid duplication of efforts.

Revised February 2014



The Ohio Innocence Project
Page 2 of 15

OIP Third-Person Contact Authorization Form

This document authorizes and directs any persons or government agencies including,
but not limited to, police, prosecution, sheriff, probation, and parole officers and officials, to
release to the Ohio Innocence Project and any attorney, staff member, student, or volunteer
working under its purview, any and all documents and other materials in their possession
pertaining to me or my case.

This document authorizes and directs attorneys who have previously represented me or
from whom I have sought legal advice and their agents, to release to the Ohio Innocence
Project and any attorney, staff member, student, or volunteer working under its purview, any
documents pertaining to me or my case and to disclose to the Ohio Innocence Project any
confidential information or privileged communications.

This document authorizes any attorney, staff member, student, or volunteer working
with the Ohio Innocence Project to communicate with any persons or government agencies
having information relevant to the evaluation of my case, including, but not limited to,
attorneys who have previously represented me or from whom I have sought legal advice, as
well as police, prosecution, sheriff, corrections, probation, and parole officers and officials.
This document further authorizes the Ohio Innocence Project to examine, receive, and/or
photocopy any and all documents pertaining to me or my case that are in the possession of

such persons or agencies.
This document authorizes any attorney, staff member, student, or volunteer working

with the Ohio Innocence Project to communicate with any persons or organizations, including,
but not limited to, members of the OPD Wrongful Conviction Unit regarding the evaluation,
progress, and/or status of my request for legal assistance.

In all other respects, my interactions with the Ohio Innocence Project will remain

privileged and confidential.

This document serves as authorization for the Ohio Innocence Project’s evaluation and
investigation purposes only.

I understand that the Ohio Innocence Project does not represent me.

By signing below, you understand that if evidence comes to light that undermines your
innocence claim, we will not work on your case anymore and will no longer represent you if
representation has started. For example, if we litigate to get DNA testing for you, and the DNA
test results confirm your guilt, we will discontinue representation. This includes both cases
where we are simply investigating and cases where we have started representing you as your
attorneys, but then evidence comes forward that shows us you no longer meet our criteria,
Because we are a non-profit organization with a limited mission of assisting people only if they
have a legitimate innocence claim, if we end up taking your case and representing you, and
then new evidence comes forward that undermines your innocence claim, we will stop

representing you at that time,
I' have read and fully understand the information above.

Signature of inmate; _:;3 PR A ¢ (A_:) m:n;(
Date: A/’ acch 16 _2o(5




The Ohio Innocence Project
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1. Areyou currently incarcerated? Due to limited resources, we are only able to assist
inmates who are currently incarcerated.

@ Yes O No (STOP! We cannot assist you.)

2. Were you convicted in Ohio? Due to limited resources, we are only able to assist
inmates who were convicted in Ohio (state and federal charges).

@ Yes 0O No (STOP! We cannot assist you.)

3. Areyou claiming actual innocence? Actual innocence means that you were not
involved in ANY way (e.g., self-defense is not an actual innocence claim).

8 Yes O No (STOP! We cannot assist you.)

4. Are you currently incarcerated on the charge(s) that you are claiming actually
innocent?

A} Yes O No (STOP! We cannot assist you.)

5. Please list ALL the crimes (and the corresponding sentences) that you are
CURRENTLY incarcerated for. Failure to disclose this information may result in
the termination of your case.

One count of rape of an alleged victim under the age of ten (10)
pursuant to 0.R.C. 2907.02 (A)(1)(b)(B); a felony of the first
degree. Sentence: 10-Life.

One count of gross sexual imposition of an alleged victim under the
age of thirteen (13) pursuant to 0.R.C. 2907.05 (A)(4); a felony of
the third degree. Sentence: 3 years.

6. Please list ALL the crimes (and the corresponding sentences) that you have EVER
been arrested and/or convicted for. Failure to disclose this information may result
in the termination of your case.

Arrested for domestic violence. Reduced to 'Disorderly Conduct"
because my former wife, Robyn-Spencer Speelman, lied under oath and
this was the gsecond time I had to call "911" during the course of
our marriage,



The Ohio Innocence Project
Page 4 of 15

7. Please describe (in detail) the facts of your case. What was the crime? What did the
prosecutors say happened?

See Doc #1, Exhibits - A,B, & D.

8. Please describe (in detail) the facts of your case. What do you think happened (e.g.,
was there a struggle, were any fluids discharged like semen, saliva, or blood, did the
perpetrator touch several items at the crime scene?)

With Exhibits - A,B, & D of Doc #1, combined with both pieces of new

evidence, Scott Sadowsky, the legal guardian parent of the alleged
rape victim S L sexually abused her on several occasions.

With Exhibits - A & D of Doc #1, Ryan Spencer, the uncle of K _
S the alleged gsi victim, sexually abused her on several

occassions.

There were no bodily fluids of any kind. The State investigated my
house in Medina for the alleged rape instead of the Sadowsky residence
in Medina and their summer home in Put-In-Bay.



The Ohio Innocence Project
Pagesofis

9a. What was the name of the victim(s)?

Alleged rape victim: S L
Alleged gsi victim: K S

9b. How did you know the victim(s)?
S L was the legal guardian child of my former girlfriend
Danielle Sadowsky-Smith.
K S, is the biological daughter of my former wife Robyn
Spencer~Speelman.

10.Did you go to trial or plead guilty? Please describe in the space below why you chose
to go to trial or plead guilty.
Trial O Pled guilty
1) I knew the truth.
2) Never take credit or blame for what is not yours.
3) I believed in the justice system.
4) 1 am innocent. And that has not changed.

11. Did you appeal your conviction(s)?
X Yes 0O No

12. Do you have any litigation pending in court (criminal or civil)?
¥ Yes (Please list all cases below) O No
My first piece of new evidence is in play (Doc #3 & 4), and currently
under appeal (Doc #7 & 8).

My second piece of new evidernce was filed in the Medina County Court of

Comnon Pleas on February 20, 2015 (see Doc #12 & 13).
My Motion to disqualify the Prosecutor is still pending in the Medina

County Court of Common Pleas (Doc #15).

13. Do you currently have a lawyer? If so, please provide his or her name, address, and
telephone number.

O Yes No
Currently I am pro se.



The Ohio Innocence Project
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14. How did you become a suspect in tr2 case+
Revenge for my affair with and impregnation of Scott Sadowsky's wife,
Danielle Sadowsky-Smith.

Revenge for divorcing my former wife Robyn Spencer-Speelman and for
ceasing all financial support.
(Doc #1, Exhibits - A, B, & D)

15. Describe your arrest: where were you and how and when did it happen?

I was living in Medina Twp. I was arrested in my driveway by Detective
Mark Kollar of the Medina City Police Department. My date of arrest
was August 4, 2005.

Detective Kollar was operating outside of his jurisdiction. He admitted
this under oath,
16. Who were the investigating detectives on your case?
The name

Detective Mark Kollar of the Medina City Police Department.
of his partner is unknown to me.
17. Did the police or investigating detective interview you BEFORE you were arrested?
& Yes 0 No

18.Did the police or investigating detective interview you AFTER you were arrested?
O Yes @ No

19. How many times were you interviewed, and for how long?
Once. I was interviewed by the Montville Township Police Department
for about 30 minutes. After this interview, and the search of my home,
their Office "terminated" my case (Doc #1, Exhibit - B, p.D-5, 13).

20. Was any part of the interview(s) recorded or videotaped? If yes, do you have a copy
of the interview?

Yes [0 No
No:.1 lI do not have a copy. For some reason they never produced it at
trial.
21. Did you give a written statement?

[0 Yes X No

22. If you gave a statement in any form, please explain why you decided to give a
statement, and briefly describe what you told the police.

Not applicable.



The Ohio Innocence Project
Page 7 of 15
23. Did you take a lie detector test? If so, when, why, and what was the result?

O Yes [ No
See Doc #1, Exhibit~B, p.D-5, 3.

24.Was any victim or witness asked to identify you prior to trial with a line-up or
photos? If so, please describe who identified you and how.

O Yes No

25.Do you know of anyone who was asked to identify you but could not? If so, who,
when, and where?

O Yes No

26.Did any eyewitnesses testify, either for you or against you? [An eyewitness is
someone who claims he or she actually saw the crime being committed.] If so, please
list their names and any information you have about how to contact them.

O Yes No

27.Who was your trial attorney? Was he or she appointed to represent you, or did you
hire him or her?

Lead Counsel F. Harrison Green -~ retained
. Co-counsel Ronald R. Stanley

28.Who was the prosecuting attorney?
Assistant Prosecutor Anne Eisenhower

29.Who was the trial judge?
Christopher J. Collier



The Ohio Innocence Project
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30. Did you have any co-defendants? Please list all of your co-defendants and any
information you have about how to contact them,

including their prison number (if
known). Did they plead guilty or go to trial? Did any of your co-defendant(s) testify
against you?

O Yes No

31. Did you testify on your own behalf? If not, why not?

0 Yes No

Despite my repeated demands to testify, Counsel ‘Green refused. He
kept telling me, '‘They didn't prove their case.’

(Doc #1, Exhibit-B, p.D-7, 13-4)

32. Did any of the victims testify? If so, which one(s)?

R Yes 1 No
Both § L and K. S testified.
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33.Did any experts testify for either side? If so, who ana wia Zid chey zav?

Yes 0 No

Dr. Suzanne LeSure tesﬁified for the State: Doc #1, Exhibit-D, p.11-12,
and 14.

Dr. Douglas M. Reed testified Voir Dire for the defense: Doc #1,
Exhibit-C.

34. Did any police informants or snitches testify against you at your trial? If so, who
testified and what did they say?

O Yes X No

35.Did anyone testify that you confessed to, or admitted being involved in, the crime?
O Yes (Please describe below) No

36. Did anybody testify against you in exchange for a promise of leniency in his or her
own case?

O Yes (Please describe below) No

37. Did anyone who testified against you, including the alleged victim, have a reason to
lie?

& Yes (Please describe below) O No
Doc #1, Exhibit-A will reveal that Robyn-Spencer Speelman lied for revemge
and to protect her brother Ryan.

Doc #1, Exhibit-B will reveal that Danielle Sadowsky-Smith lied to keep
her son A from being taken by Scott. Scott Sadowsky lied out of
revenge for my affair with and impregnation of his wife, and to cover up
his own sins. § L lied due to implanted memories.
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38.Who else testified for the prosecution at your trial?

I will enclose a witness list as Doc #20.

39. Who testified for the defense at your trial? )
Lead Counsel Green failed to subpoena the witnesses I requested. He did
call Dr. Douglas M. Reed, a licensed clinical psychologist who spent his

entire 30-year career working with socipaths and sex offenders. Dr,
Reed was only permitted to speak Voir Dire (Doc #1, Exhibit-C). The
"cynical” Jury never heard any evidence on my behalf.

40. Do you have an alibi that proves you could not have committed the crime?

Yes (Please describe below) [0 No

The State provided proof of my innocence for me. The perfect alibi.
See Doc #1? ExhibitED and you will find my uncontested Claim Of Actual
Innocence. This Claim is comprised solely of State's evidence from the
face of the incomplete and materially altered Trial Record.

41. Did you attempt to prove the alibi at trial? If so, how? If not, why not? Did you
discuss your alibi with your attorney? If not, why not?

O Yes @ No
Attorney Green refused to consult with Attorney Stanley or me. It took
me years to piece the testimonies together to find the truth.

42. Did the prosecution use any of the following “sciences” against you to convict you?
If you check one of the boxes, please explain below.

O Bite mark analysis ] 0O Shaken baby-syndrome
O Microscopic hair comparison [J Blood typing (AB, O, etc.)
O Arson science [0 Microscopic fiber or carpet analysis

O Gun shot residue

No.
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43. Were DNA test results used against y 24 %0 conv: -t yeo?
O Yes (Please describe below) No

44. Please describe the defense that you or your attorney raised at trial. (For example, if
you were convicted of rape, did you assert that the sex was consensual, or that you
were wrongfully identified? Or did you argue self-defense, present an alibi, or raise

some other defense?)
Attorney Green failed to present any viable defense.

He was paid-off and rolled over.

45. Was any physical and/or biological evidence recovered during the investigation of
your case? [Examples of this type of evidence are blood, hair, clothing, weapons,

ete.] If so, please describe it.
O Yes A No

46a. If applicable, was a rape kit obtained from the alleged victim?
Yes 8 No

46b. Did you ever see or hear about a report of the test results? If so, what did it say?
&] Yes (Please describe below) 0O No

See Doc #1, Exhibit-D, p.7, f1.
46c¢. Were the results used at trial?
Yes (Please describe below) O No

This evidence was presented by Nurse Practitioner Donna Abbott,

46d. Do you know what lab or individual conducted the test?
K Yes (Please name below) 0 No
Donna Abbott worked for Akron Children's Hospital
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47. Is there new evidence in your case—or could there be new evidence in YOI casc—-
which would demonstrate your actual innocence? Before you answer this question,
below, please read the following discussion of “new evidence” very carefully.

“New evidence,” means evidence that was not used by either side—the defense or the
prosecution—at the time you were convicted. Some examples of new evidence

include:

1)

2)

3)

4}

5)

6)

7)

A DNA test that a lab contacted by the Ohio Innocence Project could perform
on the crime scene evidence which would conclusively prove that you did not

commit the crime.

A DNA test which a lab could perform which would point to someone else
having committed the crime

A DNA test on the crime scene evidence which could be put in the national
DNA database of convicted felons and which might match to a convicted felon
showing that that person actually committed the crime.

A key state witness against you at the time you were convicted who has now
recanted his or her testimony. By “recanted,” we mean that the witness is now
saying that he or she lied against you before, or was mistaken before, and that
they now are saying something different that shows you are innocent.

A newly discovered witness who has recently come forward, and who did not
testify before, who can now testify that you are innocent. This can be
someone who saw the crime and says it was someone else who they saw do it,
or someone who provides you with a solid alibi because they were with you
somewhere else when the crime occurred.

Other new science other than DNA, such gun shot residue analysis or new
arson science, which could be performed on the crime scene evidence and
which would show that you are innocent. (Note: lead bullet analysis and
arson science have greatly advanced in recent years. Many old methods that
might have been used to convict you are now considered inaccurate. If you
were convicted as a result of arson science or gun shot residue analysis, new
studies showing those methods were flawed could constitute new evidence).

Evidence that your lawyer did not present evidence that could have proven
you innocent.

**Note: The above list is not a complete list of the different types of new evidence,
but is a list that helps explain the concept of “new evidence” by giving several
examples,
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Having read the description of “new evidance,” please answer gquestiz.: ;7 des'. ibi

the new evidence in your case:

Yes. There are two pieces of new evidence.

1) A medical research paper: Doc #3, Exhibit-B; Doc #4, Exhibit-J.
2) Facebook transmission: Doc #12, Exhibit-B; Doc #13, Exhibit-C.

48. Do you know whether any physical evidence is still available for testing?
O Yes (Please describe below) No

49. Do you know who committed the crime(s) of which you were convicted? If yes,
please name them below and provide that person’s whereabouts (if known).

Yes O No
Scott Sadowsky, who assaulted S L , lives in Ohio.
Ryan Spencer, who assaulted ¥ @ S , lives in Florida.

50. How do you know that this person is the true perpetrator?
Pertaining to Scott Sadowsky, see Doc #1, Exhibits-B and D.

Pertaining to Ryan Sperncer, see Doc #1, Exhibit~A and D.
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51. What is your first language?
English
52.What is the highest grade you completed in school?
- BREPACTED
53.Is there any reason that corresponding in writing will be difficult for you?
00 Yes (Please describe below) @ No

54. Have you ever received mental health treatment?
O Yes (Please describe below) No

55. Would you be willing to sign a release to allow us to review your medical records?
3 Yes [J No (Please describe why not)

53.Were you employed at the time of your arrest? If so, please provide the name,
address, and telephone number of your employer:
Yes O No
I owned my own construction company for over eight years. See Doc #1,
EXhibit-A, p-l, “1.

54. Please provide the names, addresses, and phone numbers of family and friends who
might have information regarding your case. By writing these names, you are
giving us permission to talk to them about your case.

Attorney Ronald R. Stanley
P.0. Box 571
Medina, Ohio 44258

Phone: (330) 952-1415
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.7  55. Please tell us anything else you would like us o kiiow the. cou - he. 2 L3 Prove your
V)

= innocence? Use additional sheets of paper if necessary.

I have given you everything that I have that could be used to prove my
1nnocen§e ¥1 I asiyis that you read everything I sent you.

Signature of inmate: ;_r\m\}g_? \/() nﬁrﬁ
Date: g‘fj 'a reh [(2 éQ(
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¥ou awhra of whather or nct a social history was taken?
A It was,
o All right. And then ara you also aware of whe
brought her in?
A Yeos,
Q And did you speak with those psople?
A I baliwva I $poke with her == hear mother or her legal
guagdian.
] Okay. And then did you conduct s physlzal
sxanipation on SREDACTRDY
A Yes, I did,
Q All sight. Wow, golng over in detsll, what axactly

== wsll, 1st's go ower in detall the physical sxsm that you
conducted on SEEDSOTRD |

A The physical exam esssntially i3 & head=to-taoe
physizal exam that tha child would gat far a preschool
physical, or any other typa of well-child exam. Bue
bacause of the natura of the complaints, or allegatisns,
EhAt the child &2 coming in with, the bulk of the esxam, ar
the nost jmportant part of the ‘axam, ia to lpok at the
vaginal and the labiel areas. .'rnu L9 dona Eirat juat by
me looking at those parts with the naked sye. Wa also have
a plece of aquipsent called a colposcops that is
ssaentially a magnifying device that allows me to sew

things a little sore clearly. fIt's not lnsarted into the

267
who interviswed 3. ?
A Yas.
b} And she gave you the history from that interview?
A That i3 correct.
] All right. Let's turn te the pages that you
completad a3 a result of the physical sxam.
A I put the time thare that I dictated the raport and
Another Nurae did the rest af éhat.
Q ALl right, Mow, did you, in faet, Teport that she

dssned €0 be in fairly normal health?

A Yus, !

Q 3he's in good health for'a child her age?
A Yoy,

Q And that first page i3 just baslcally her

imaunizacions and her regular checkup kind of informatlon?
A Yas.
o All right. Then tha next page. It's the Suspactad

Child Abuse and MWaglact Ascord.

A Yas.

Q And you fllled that out, 'u:ncn

A Yes, I dig. .

9 Explain for ma what that ls and what the tindinga
nEen.

A This is & series of checkbonua that wes use o just

chack the history that is given to us, Balnly on what typa
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child in any way, it stays about nine inches to a toot
away, but again, it allows me to see things mare clestly.
It alsc has the capabllity for pheto documentation.

IZ it's phucedsary, ws do testing for
sezydlly-tranamicced dissases.’ That was pot dopne in
SUDATH 's case,

And that's essantially the physicsl exsm process.

[ ALl zight. 350 you examined har from head to tom?
A Yes.
9 And then you eximine Both her vaginal ares and her

labial arsa?
A Taa,
o okay.
{¥hersupon, & discusslon betwesn Prosscutor
Livenhover and Attarnay Gredn was then held out of

tha hearing of tha cnuu.upezur.]

Q How, a3 part of your exam, did yOuU gensrate a repore?
A Tes.
Q All right. Showing you what's Lesn marked as State's

Exhibit 4, can you idantify that for me, plesse
A iWicneas parusing dDBII.IIII';E.)

This i3 » copy of the medical razord that was
completad on SRDACTED jpmwrnv, Ip contaips my
docuasncscion, the documantation of Elizabeth Marstatter.

Q tilizabeth Morcstattay ia the licensed social worker

2E8
of informatiga the child ls desccibing or the historian is
desczibing ta ua,

Thera's alsc a secktion that aaks if thers havs
bean any physical symptoms or behavioral symptoma related
te the allegation of sexusl abuse,

Q ALl right. The naxt page. Dows that reprasent the

soclal hlatory of the incidents that Llizabath Mocstatter

took? i

A Mo, This actually is my dictation that was -=

Q Okay.

A == transcribed. It way the hlatory from SREDMTE ig

legal guardian, snd a histocy that was given to om oy

Ellizabeth Horstatter.

4] Okay, and the next page?

A The naxt page is documencation ¢f the phyaical axam
that I oid.

Q All righe. How, you Qo over har mouth, her fasce, her

head, har nack. There are no aigns of physical trauma?

A That's corregt.
] FhysScal trauma is defindd as what?
A Fhyaical trauma {» an injury to tha body, a

digtuption of the tissue in any way, an sbraailon, a cut.

Q Okay. And she had none of that?
A Sha had none of that.
Q ALl rlght. And then you ¢xsmined har vaginal areal
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A Yes, 1 afa.
q Tall me what you found.
A I found a complataly normal #xam. ODuring the axam, a

saall, lLittle portion of skin got, I guass, somewhat of an
abrayion, which is not uncommon Ln some litcle girls, That
happened during ths axam, though. It was not thers bafors
Ehat. Othearwise, there wzs naihlaq out of the ocdinary on
her phyaical exam. :

] All cight. WNow, yau also thes noted that you did not

teally ~= you alan checked her ladia region, ecorcact?

L] Yua.,

Q And the saes kind of Hn&.lnqu, ocorrect?

A Correct, notilng abnarmal.

Q All right. Hew, did you moce anythlng else in those

éress out of the ordinary?
A No,
Q Okay. The next page. Did you == you indicated you

did not chegk for saclially-trads =- or sexusily-transmitted

diseases.

1.3 I did not.

Q Why not?

A Bacause I discusawd that with her mothar, and she did

not fewl that that nesded to be done, and based on Rer
explanation of why medlcally it waa appropriate not te de

teating, I didn'c.

271
miaconception amang svaryons.

Whan 3 gicl stagts te go through puberty, that
tlssue changes. But irregardiess, unless there’s a
conganital abnormality, when a hymsn its completely closed
together, tharze's also an cpaning thece, and ss & litele
gicl gets oldec, the opening gats bigger.

And then inslda of the hyman la the vaglinal
canal, and when you Q¢ further up thare’s tha cacvia and
the utarus and the rest of the ceproductive systea.

Q Oksy. So how is Lt that.you cah conclude shs was a
victim of zasus) sbuse, bescauss thece are no physical
tindingw of thac?

A Firat of all, in most cases of childeen dascribling
saxual abuse, Ln about ninety percent thers ate mo phyaical
findings. And that's becsuse sither when thay have a
physical exam and some time hay wlspswd, if thare was any
typa of injury = a bruise, an abrasion, & cut, & tesf = the
tissus in that ares heals vary guickly. It's kind of llks
the tissus inalde of your aouth. We'va all baen chewling
and bitren the wrong way amd it hurts, nAu it you drink
somethlng with citrus in it, it burns. You might aven
tasts & little bit of blood, th twd or threa days later
it's completaly haalsd so you don’t aven know that it‘a
there. :

The tlasues in the vaginal agea ars tissues of

15
111
17
18
19
20
F1}
22
2]
24

-

L

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
1%
0
21
22
a3
24
2%

E)ﬂhibit"37 270

Q All right. Wow, d¢ld you draw a conclusion based an
your mxam, after reading the history and aftar eonducting
your axam?

Tas.

And did you reflect that Ln your report?

Yas, [ did.

And what comclusfen did you draw?

Thet SEEDACTED hnyd besn a victim of sexusl abuse.

o > O » 0O '»

ALl right. HNew, you alac lndicate that thers weren‘t

any physical findings.

A That's right.
] Can you tall me how those two thlngs can coexist?
A Thara are & nuaber of redacns for that, Can T fifat

start by kind ot axplaining theé anatomy on a child

SRIDACTED 'y age?

Q tes,

A When we're talking about the ganital or the private
Part anstomy, the first thing you ses whan you lock at a
Little girl that is pet wearing any clothes in the private
pact £3 the labia. That's the outer surface of the genltal
systam, If you separata that skin about s half an inch,
about an inch Lnside of that is a pilece of tissus called
the hymsn., Tha hysasn is a p‘.lcll of tissue that la kind of
like & curtain around the wvaginsl araa. It does not

coepletely occlude the vagina, which is a pratty common
!

i

mn
the sams structucs. S0 thera cam be an injucy thezs
initially and it haals very qulckly., I have seen children
with injuries and then seen them two days, two weaks later,
and [t's healed bayond recognition. Seo Lf there ia an
initial injury, Lt can hesl 30 we don't aes it when we do
an anan aftar time lapsas.

Somstimes there isn’t any lnjury becauss things
can go inside of the vaginal-area ang it's not golng to do
any damage, As I 2aid, the hysan skcs back about a half an
inch or an inch inside the body, so a fingar of & panis can
g2 in that far and nething happena, Scastimes panecratlon
€an go through tha hymen and nothing happens.

In childran, before thay go through pubsrty,
usually tha hymen 13 vary sensitivae if §t's touched., ss if
somathing touchas the hynen they will desczibs that there
wap paln but, you know, we ju:é kind of surmise that maybe
that's vhan tha panetrstion stops and that's why thars
waan't any lajucy.

S0 there can be ssxual abuse without any physical
t£indings bescause thare sither varen't any injuriss done at
4ll or thers vers some miner injucies thet have healed by

tha time the exam i3 done.

[+ Those injuries that hul.' would they leave scars?
A Hoat of the time they do !not.
Q Is 3State's Exhibit 4, cthit [ gave you, Lo yeur
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Q He was vorking on their deck? ;
L He had alresdy bean ddm.narklna on Ehelr deck. My
brother Ryan actually worked with Frank.
Q And when you met him, you were still married at the
cina?
A Tes;, I was.
Q And yoau bagan » relationship with Frank Wood?
A Yas, t dia,
o All right, And at the time you left yeur husband,
WL you pregnant with --
A L den't thiak I was.
Q All right. Ard apparentiy it was astablished chat
Frank Wood was nat the father of thae chlld?
A Yeou.
Q All right. Wow, were thu:n any financisl sattlemasts
a3 4 result of the divorca?
A No, thate was not.
Q Okay. At some time during -- or alter youy divorce,
vas Frank Wood helping you pay your bills?
A Ha helped ae pay my car insurance.
Q How much was that & month?
A 1t was around -- batween ninety-four and ninety-ain
dailaca, :
Q Whose jdes was that?
A He had offarsd 1t, He knev that I nesded some

36)

ware then held at sidebar out of the heaaring of tha
Jurors.)

THE COORT: Go ahead.
HS. EIJENHOWER: Your Honor, I
balieva that thls is golng to £t the excited
urterancs sxception,

THE COUAT: Ws havan't
gottan that yer.

MS. EISENHOWER: Thls was the
first initial diasclosure that she avar sads sbout
thia incident to anybody.

THE COURT: Ckay. As Lt
stands right now, I den't know how I'm geing to rule,

Why dan't you ==

HS. ETIENHOWER: I can just
strike that question.
THE COURT: Okay.

[wharesupon, the further follewjng procssdings
vera then held in the presance of the Court, the
Jurors, Counssl., and the Defandant.}

8Y WS. EISLNHOWER:

== ELIDNHDWER:
Q I'm going to scrike that quastion and rephrase it far
you.

Dis there come 4 tioe wharn K™ came to yasu and

had a conversscion with you about Frank Wood?
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sr¢latance at that tima, and hé had offerad to do Lit.

Q All right. How long did ha do ic?

A Hot more than siz months,

] Okay. %0 he paid your car insursnce for a period of
time?

A Hm=hm, yas.

[-] All cight. MNow, dld thers come a time after you had

separated and divorced Frank Wood and you ware -« whare
were you living?

In Brupswick. I had my llwn apartsant.

A
Q All right, pid there come a tims whare your daughter
KE™ nade a disclosurs to you:concerning Frank Wood?
A Yos. :
Q What was that?
A Thls was -- this wis ac the end of the summsrc of
2004,
] The end of the summer of 20047
A Hmeha. i
Q Tall ma what she tald yu;l.
A ha told me =«
HR. GREEN: objecclon.
THE COURT: Basia?
MR. GREEM: . Hearsay.
THE COURT: Come on up.
{Mharaupon, tha !uréh-r following procesdings
364
A Tea,
[+] And can you describe for me har state at the tire she
Wiz having that convarsatian?
A She was upset.
Q Was sha crying?
A She did atazt te ery 83 she was talking to ma.
-] ¥a3 aha shaking?
A Yes, b waa.
Q And in your mind, was shy visibly upset sbout what

she was txlling you?

A Ysa, she was,
Q And what did she tell you?
A 3he stated to ms that he had touchad her.
MR. GREEN: Objection, your
Henec.

THE COURT: I'a going to

sustain the objection, Your next gueation, pleass.

Q A & result of what she told you about HMr. Wood, what
did you go?

A I did not do anything u'thl time,

-] ¥hy not?

A Becauzs wa were all still grievlng over oy dad dying,

we wace both very close to him, it was =~ we warse scill
trying to nea) from thac.

Q Any other ressona?
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- IN THE MgsTie. [KeLaTions COURT  Exhibit-39
£DIVA COUNTY, BRIy priss COURT
R DBYN Woop N Case No. _Ol DR 4
Pelilioner Vel =1 AN 9:.53
Date Of Birth:__ 5-F-2 o e CSEA No. : )
FiED
Judge __ Mary 2. ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ@'
CLERK OF COUATS
V. : Magistrate

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE FULL HEARING CIVIL
PROTECTION ORDER (R.C. 3113.31)

=

Respondent ' [J witH sUPPORT ORDER
Date Of Birth:_ NN : . .
PERSON(S) PROTECTED BY THIS ORDER:
PETITIONER: _RopyY N 0ooD DOB SR
NOTICE TO RESPONDENT: SEE | FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD MEMBER(S):
THE ATTACHED WARNING. ggg
_ DOB |
RESIDENCE: 15 W. Stueseies g Metinn, 0 YU256
- -
2%

“This proceeding came on for a hearing on _Septeminer B, 200l before the Court

exthevndersigred-Magisirate-
Purs\ant to Civil Rule 53 and the Ex parte Qrder filed on 9”@"5‘1: 30 , Z2po0) . . The following Individuaés were
e, P »? At tanle

present. Pa e . l ENE(R e AN DA (et A0k b A
Ce2r Takes wdieind nohea Hheod Hi-dachkad shduos tha hee havut Colleckveby filsd 7 prior pefrhons of dbmeshe vicolénce
eqeiiny b HeMbirs ) pehhonea's fapnly, 54) whuch u&u&umuﬂhlﬂcfowhqxn ﬂa_rmq a.nf; fbues i fhcliaian by parida,

ALY L- 2 * .

The Gourt/Mesi hereby makeé'the following findings of fact: b n bikclon,
fhhone acknoulodged sho was SHAShing wins glasses i reliese | 2 host A% Sh prepaisd ore ouh: s~

The Zourt further finds by a preponderance of the evidence: 1) that the Petitioner or Petitioner's family or household
merer(s) are in danger of or have been a victim of domestic violence, as defined in Ohio Revised Code 3113.31(A),
Comyitted by Respondent; and 2) the following orders are equitable, fair, and necessary to bring about a cessation or
prewvntion of domestic violence against the family or household member(s) named in the Petition. Violence Against
Mﬁbﬂgﬂkﬂmm&@m The Court finds that it has jurisdiction over the parties
and natter under Ohio law and that notice and an opportunity to be heard were provided to Respondent.

Up o the evidence submitted, the Court hersby ORDERS as fotlows {the applicable orders are marked belowy):

ﬁ * RESPONDENT SHALL NOT ABUSE the famlly or household member(s) named in this Order by harming,
tt€mpting to harm, threatening, molesting, fotlowing, stalking. bothering, harassing, annoying, contacting, or forcing
SeXul relations upon them. [NCIC 01 and 02]

D . RESPONDENT SHALL IMMED!ATELY VACATE the following residence:

. EXCLUSIVE POSSESSION OF THE RESIDENCE located at rwood Blvd. O labe ;OH
S snted to: &smndem" shall not interfers with this individual's right to

occuy the residence by canceling utilities or insurance and .interrupting phone service, mail delivery, or the delivery of any
oty edocuments or items. [NCIC 03]

FO T3 0.01-). DOMESTIC VIOLENCE FULL HEARING CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER REV. 6/1/00

VL 11066 PG 213 Discard all previous versions of this form,

-
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18, ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clerk of Court shall cause a copy of the Petition and this Order fo be defivered to

the Respondent as required by faw. “Delivered" for this purpose means service in accordance with Rules 4 through 4.8 of the

Rules of Civil Procedure. The Clerk of Court shali"also provide certifled coples-of the Pelition and this Order lo Pelitioner

.upon request. . This Order Is granted without bond, and (s effective through the™ lfollowing - date:
2] 20 [o=2— . >

IT IS SO ORDERED,

~

M RATE

S i St = S

A FULL HEARING on thls Order, and on all other Issues
raised by the Pelitign, shall be held before
Judg e 4 .
on at 2. ¢D am a_t
the following location;

MEDINA COUNTY DOMESTIC RELATIONS COURT

99 PUBLIC SQUARE 1
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COURT OF COlNVION PLEAS, DIVISION OF DONQIC RELATIONS
; MEDINA COUNTY, OHIO

. /) ' Cowom P
2 @oﬁm S paves . CASENO. 204LY LEASCOURT
PETITIONER , _—_élmz LA 25 g s 25
- JUDGE MARY R, KOVACK - - .
VS, : : . "l:rj

| KATHY FORTNEY
. MEDINA COU
Frawk weorD ENTRY MODIFYING-OR VACATINGK OF COURTs
RESPONDENT - - . EXPARTE AND/OR CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER

This matler is before the Court upon the motion of Petitioner to modify or vacate the Domestic Violence
-ex-parig-and/or Civil Protection Order issued hereinon Sz 1- 2 ‘2 , 2001 . Both parties appeared
before the Courton _ gy 1 A5 20 0f, and requested the Court to approve a.modification for the'
following reasons:
= Le Omvor. A0 HAade ResoryzD rem
ERENCES

The Court advised Petitioner that unless Petitioner agreed to a modification, Respondent would be
required to prove to the Court by a preponderance of the evidence that a modification of the Civil Protecnon
Order is appropriate,

The Court advised Respondent that the following mOdlﬁCﬂ.thfl does not change the portion of the Civil
Protection Order that pl‘OhlbltS Respondent from abusing Petitioner or other named family or household
members, and that Respondent may- -still be arrested for any violation of those orders against domestic violence.

Upon hearing, the Court finds that the Civil Protection Order specified above shall bé modified or
vacated, as follows:

e o Peoyecyman okpDex TS VACHEL £n TV
BN TIRENY '

All provisions of the Civil Protection Order not specificaily modified or vacated herein shall
remain in full force and effect and shall be enforced by law enforcement officers in accordance with law.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED THAT p&—m;\)m shall pay the remaining Court costs m thls
action forthwith by cash, check or money order to the Clerk of Courts.

PN ORDE
?@é« | ITISS Pﬁ_&uk

JUDGE N!,ARY R. KOVACK

Copiesto: - )
" Petitioner ortatm'r‘i'r‘ ey: ./ReSpondent osattermey: ™
Other Other:

s e e — —

JE:Modityvacaeexpari andor CPO VL ‘M@@ PG 455
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ELLE)

You just had a birthday?:
Whac?
¥You Juat had » birthday, right?
Yeah.
oid you have & party?
Sort of.
Sare of, okay._

Mhat do you have with you?
By Teddy Bear - Ted.
ALl zright. who lives in your houss with you?

Hy mam's naw husband Eric, my mom, my twe sistecs

I and ™™™, and my pets.

0
L
o
o
]
A

Q

Dh, ysour pets?

{Witness nodding sffirmativaly.}

What kind of pacs?

Thres cats, one fiwh,

One fish. Do they get along with the zats, the fish?
Sore af,

Sort of, huh? ALl Tight.

Was chers & tipe whare your mom was marcled te

Frank Wood?

A

@
A
Q

Tus.
all right. 0o you rewpaber whan that was?
Yaah.

Do you remembar how long ago? A while ago?

kLE
THE CQURT: You can't block
Bly view,
HS. EISENHOWER: Oh, okay. 1'1i
itand over hats.
HR. GREEN: And I'm »
little concerned sbout the approach hare, your Honor.

THE CTOURT: 1 don*t cars.

BY M3. EISENHOWER:

Q

Po you zenember a tims whare you and Frank wers

together upstairs in the hcuse 1in Chippava?

A
@

Ha.
oxay.

THE COURT: Thank you, You
can step down. Thanks vary such

THE WITHESS: Okay.

THE COUAT: ¥a‘ra going te
take a break. Don't discusy the case smomg
youraalves or begln to form or sapress an opinion
about the marear untll you gat all tha evidence, you
Jet your instructions of law, and you begin your
delibsrations.

Wa'll ses you in aboeut ten minutes. Thanks very
much.

(Whereupon, the Jury exited the courtzonm snd

the futrthar folloving procaedings were then hald in

IO O LM RRFOATING dairie 4 PR A
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A {Witness nodding affirmacively.}

Q Oksy. Do you repesbar -- you hava to speak up nice
and loud.

A Yeah.

Q Thers you ga. All right.

To you remember where you lived when you lived

with Frank Weed?

A Yaah.

Q Shaze?

A Once in Chippewa.

Q Well, sll right, let’s tslk about Chippswa. Oid you

liva closs to the lake in Chippewa?

A Yaah,

] Pid you like that?

A It was #ll righet.

Q Okay. And Hy. Waod lived thars with you, right?

A Ha-hm, yer.

Q Gkay. When Frank Wood lived there with you, do you

remeaber 3 time whers you would talk to him im che upstalrs

room?

A No, I dem‘t think ao.
NR. GREEN: Judge .
THE COURT: Yaa, sir.
MR. GREENM: Can HMisa

Zisenhowar move just g lictle bit?

Jag
the presance of tha Court, Counssl, and the
O fendant.)

THE COURT: You can'‘t get
that trom her. She's naé going to be aple to do it.
She can't do It,

MS. EISENHOWER: She haa
typlcally sxhibited scma reluctance initially, but
then haa actually besn able to speak about what
happanad,

THE COURT: he doasn't
Iemanber baing in the room with Frank Mood that's the
#ite of this crims. If ahe dossn't resember it, ohe
dowan't remembar It. I'®m not going to have you ~= I
mean, 1'm not golng to havs you push tha girl into
something like this, I mean, it°s just not right.
You got what you got.

MS. EISENHONER: T hava
Dz. LaSure, who indlcates that every time =- I msan,
that's har initisl responss every cims when lc's
discussed.,

THE COURT: And 3o cthen
which one doss the Jury believe, whan she says “no"
or when she sdys "yas"7 That's sy problam. wy
problem 13 chat's whetw we are at. I mesn, if you'rs

relylng on her to give you tastlmony that's truthful
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ELE:]
= ana [ think you are - you've goc te rzely on har to
give you testimony that'd teuthful,

M3. CISTHHOWER: Well ==

THE COURT: 3 And, “Mo, I
don't remember,” 13, "Ho, 1 Qon't rameober.” And yau
saw har aifficulty in doing this.

My othef problem here Ls, this la a hard thirg
for her ta do, and I cartalrly den’'t want to puk hap
in a bad situatlion while this is gaing an Iin auch a
mannac. I hedrd what I heard.

M3, EISENHOWERN: Yeur Honor, may
! recall her and ask her if she remembars telling
somecnae abaut Lt? Batiduse she's on tape talling
pecple about it. She's éilﬂulilﬁ it with har
therapiat,

THE COURT: That's
wonderful, axcapt wa've qbt 4 trial teday, sno this
13 whare 1t mattars. 3he can talk to the man in
the moon, but unlaas she gets on che stand and says,
“Yaah, I remeabar doing it,* and, "I remsmber this
a3n daing it to me,” we don't have anything. She can
talk to anybody in the world about this, but =- and
if she's apoken to a therapist about this, gaad,
that's good for har tharapy. If she's talked to

friends, that's gecd far her 1f she'a able to express

' 131
M3. EISENHOWER: T would
eovisusly like to !.cllllhit.

If yau're Not golng to permit that, I would
like to recall Robyn Spencer to ldent{{y Frank Wood,
4nd then my next witness would be Dr. LeSure, whe was
tzmating bat® of thesa victims, who i3 going to
cutline her dlagnoakls and =--

MR. GREEN; Judge, [ can't
hear mer <ith all the background nolsse.
THE CQURT: ALl right.

. H3. EISENHOWER: Dr. LaJuze is
9eing to autline her treacment of tham, the historles
they both presanted, and thw diagnoses and the
treatasnt that they have been given.

T would request that wa play the lntarvisw that
was dene with M= Spadaecitl, that was done at Job ana
Faaily Services Dy & Job ang Family Services soclsl
workar,

THE CQURT: Wno waas present
Qurlng that incecview?

H3. EISENHOWER: David HMadrich
and Det. Xallar.

Ware you in the room?

THE COURT: tou can‘t da it

for the same 1

on. Tha Crawiord casa aasmy to
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130
har faslings about it, But we've got a trial today.
and iha ha® got Lo be able to present this In such a
way to the Jurys that La, 3he hss to say, "Yes, thiia
thing happaned.” What I'.u hearing her say is, "Ho,
i1t di¢n't happen.”

I2 3he dossn’t remembar anything, she doean't
Iemssber. 1'm nat privy to all of the things yeu are
priey to. I know what I saw, and that was & girl who
for - and I'Ll cell you - at least fiftean asconds
didn't anzwer the question at all; and than second. a
9irl, whan you saked her tha questlion directly,
almost in 8 way %o get n‘r te == to lock her la,
she says sha aidn't remeaber. I knaw that's what I
saw,

And that's noc her gaul:. 1'a not blaming
#nyone. It's not your fault. It’'s just that's what
you have sonatimes, ana that's what I was looking
ac.

30 1f you want to tahe 8 break, Lf you want to
talk to her and calm har down, that's fine. 1'11 ses
you in a4 little bit.

{Raceaas ctaksn.)
THE COURT: Misx
Elsenhowar, have you thought sbout what you're going

Eo do?

132
indicats to a4, unless & social worker i3 doing this
far the purpose of diagnosis and treatsient, la part
0f the Treaatasn: team; it dosan'tc come under the
diagnosis and trestment portion. But I'll listen te
thoss Witnegass 1 you want to put tham an the sctand
and tall me the circumscances That surcoundad Chat,

'Ll sme if wa can get you your fila. You'rw
90ing Lo need s good five, ten minutes to look at
that?

M3, EIZENHOWER: Yes, your
Honor, I am going to newed & few minutes. 1 would --
I can glve 1t to har now.

THE COURT: fny den't you
4o that, and why dan't we come back in ten slnutes
and find out where you're at.

M8, EISENHOWER: 50 again, 1
9uess I wauld request that I be able to recall NE=~¥r,

THE COUAT: Okay., Here's
ay question for ygu., If you recall her and you ask
hes, =Do you remembar thia," and she 3ays "No,* wa'te
dons, okay? We're done. We're done. 1I'm not going
to let you go through vith her, “Yes, you do
remembar. Do you remember this? Do you remember
this?"

How old i3 ahe?
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393
NS, EISENHOWER: 3he just turned
tan,

THE COURT: Just turned
ten. She's got to be able to == you've got to take
her teatimony. I mean, soms people can‘t do this.
Haybs she can't do this. And that's akay.

But my paint 1s == hare, let’s do thia. I*'11
glve yuu.thl tile, take fton minutes, talk to
Dr. LeSure, 3se how yuu'fo going to do this. 1I'll
llleun to your raquast to put her back on the scand
agaln for the putposa of asking her that question and

we'll see ohere we'ra at snd we'll go from thars.

All sighe?
MS, EISCLNHOWER: All cight.
[Rucsss taksn.)
THE COURT: Hise
Eisenhower.
M3, EISENHOMER: I want to

zecall N, 1 have spoken to har, she is willing
to coms back on the Ihlné and talk., But, to by very
frank with you, Judge, ahm indicates to me that aha
is to0 frightensd to talk, but she i3 willing to

3ay that is Frank Wood and that she has talked to
Pr. LeSure about what happaned, but when I bagin to

a3k her the next question, ahe says, "I am too afraia

393

Henor. L

THE COURT: I kpow how
difficult thase casd are! We'll sea what we can
da, o

HE&, EISENMOWER: All right.

THE COURT: Gaod. Well,
lat's get started and a-; how much we cap get
through. i

HA. GREEN: Juat for che
racord, we'll objact to éh- recalling.

THE COORT: ! I understand.

She‘'s & ten-year-old qlzi. I'a golng to Jat bar
talk, but obvioualy tha irash i3 ahort,

Thera's a couple of things. I'm concesned for
youg cliant, your side, 'l'u not going to lat
HMias Eisenhowar testify for har. That's important.

And I don't sean that you would, but I *how what
it takes to try ons of :‘0:. casen. And they ara
hard.

And so the sacond thing ia, I thipk Hisa
Efsanhower has called it just right. T wean, let's
see what this girl will say, snd I'll give you an
oppottunity to cross-sasmine her and we'll go fIom
thers.

Se 1 will note your wbjectlon to my rzuling.
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to talk.”
THE COURT: I understand.

HS. EISENHONER: 30 I would 1like

to put her up there. '
THE COURT: You havs what

you have. You know, I'l] parmit you to recall har.

I gueas what I don’t want you to do i, I don't want

you to teacify for har. (I'm faarful of that,

On the other hsnd, you know, I'm trying to gec
== I'm mors Inclusive than exclusive., I don't want
to -- I called & halt to it mostly -- well, not
*mostly.” I called a halt to tha testlacny for har.
It smemad kind of difficult for her.

M3, EISENHOWER: Judge --

THE CQUAT: I dan’t want to
Put her in an uncomfortable positlon,

M3, ETSENHOWER: I'm talling you
that 1've nade & pact with her to ask her thoss tu€o
quastions, and than sha ;nn said to me, "I'm too
afrald to say snything elss.” That's sll she's going
to aay, and for her nent;t wall=being. that*s all I'm
gaing to ask her. '

THE COURT: i And I

appreciics that,

HS. EISEHHOMER; fes, your
1
398
MR, GREEM: Thank you,
THE COURT: ' Bring the Jury

in. .

(Mheraupon, the further following procesdings
ware then hald in tha pr;:cnc- of the Court, the
Jurors, Counsel, and the Defendant.)

THE COURT: 1 Thare we go.
We are back on the record in Case Wumber 03 CR 0369,
Scata of onlo versus Frank Wood.

Hiss Eisenhower.

M3. EISENHOWER: The State of
Ohie would like to recall W™ fEDACTED o the stand.

THE COQRT: Ckay. Just
come on back Ln tha sime ssat hare.

You rsmsmbsar the microphona, right?

THE WITHESS: Yeah.

THE COURMT: Just maka your
voice nica and loud. You don't like the microphone?
You don't like Le?

THE WITHESS: It's okay.

TRE COURT: Tedh. Bacauze
LI éhat lady back thare? 3She loves to hesr your
voica, and you nesd to talk so she can haar you,
okay?

THE WITNESS: Okay.




COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING —~ MONDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2004 Exhibit-43

Sharon A. Ray called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. with Patricia G. Geissman and
Stephen D. Hambley present.

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance and a prayer. There were no minutes
for approval this week and no resolutions from the Highway Engineer’s Office.

Gary Berkowitz, Human Resources Director, presented and reviewed the personnel
resolution. Mrs. Geissman moved to approve this resolution. Seconded by Mr. Hambley. Ms.
Ray pointed out that the Animal Shelter’s part-time replacement employee and intermittent
employee will be used on an as-needed basis such as when an employee is sick and to work some
Saturday shifts. There was no further discussion. Roll Call showed all Commissioners voting

AYE,

Gary presented a resolution approving and authorizing the suspension for two days of an
electrical inspector in the Building Department. Mrs. Geissman moved to approve the
suspension. Mr. Hembley seconded. There was no discussion. Roll Call showed all

Comimissioners voting AYE.

Ken Hotz, Sanitary Engineer, presented a resolution authorizing the acceptance of
various waterline easements for two separate projects. Mrs. Geissman moved to approve the
casements and Mr. Hambley seconded the motion. There was no discussion. Roll Call showed

all Commissioners voting AYE.

Gary Berkowitz, Human Resources Director, presented a resolution amending the Table
of QOrganization for the Animal Shelter. They took a full-time deputy dog warden and reduced
that to a part-time position. They also added an intermittent deputy dog warden position to work
intermittently and for Saturday hour’s coverage. Mrs. Geissman made a motion to amend the
revised Table of Organization and Mr. Hambley seconded the motion. There was no discussion.
Roli Call showed all Commissioners voting AYE.

Chris Jakab, Finance Director, presented and reviewed resolutions involving amending
the appropriations, various fund transfers, cash transfers, approving an agreement for Health &
Development Services between Family First Council’s Help Me Grow Program and the Medina
County Health Department for service coordination and visitation, creation of a surplus rotary
fund to benefit the online auction with distribution of the proceeds of the sales to the various
departments, creation of a Safe Communities Program Fund that suthorizes appropriations (a
grant from the Ohio Department of Safety) in an amount not to exceed $56,382 administered
through the Sheriff’s Office, declaring Medina County property as excess property and
authorizing them to dispose of the excess property through the online auction and Table A items
may be disposed of, authorizing a contract with the Wester Reserve Area Agency on Aging for
Passport Services for home delivered meals, and paying the weekly bills totaling $1,361,438.13.
Mrs. Geissman moved to approve the eleven finance resolutions and paying the bills, Mr.
Hambley seconded the motion. There was no discussion. Ro}l Call showed all Commissioners

voting AYE. ?. \ofB

Mead Wilkins, Job & Family Services Director (JFS), announced that the Coats For Kids
drive that they coordinated, raised over $2,000, which bought 152 coats. He praised the Medina

Diner on Route 18 for raising over $800.



COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING - MONDAY, NOVEMBER 22, 2004

The second resolution Mead presented was authorizing a professional services agreement
between Job & Family Services and Cornerstone Psychological. He explained that Suzanne
LeSure and Comerstone Psychological have been providing, for over ten years, free therapy for
Medina County children who have been sexually abused. She organized therapists from
different agencies to meet with these children at the JFS Building for several hours every week.
This agreement would be to trim some of her administrative costs. Mrs. Geissman moved to
approve the agreement and Mr. Hambley seconded the motion. There was no discussion. Roll
Call showed all Commissioners voting AYE.

The third resolution Mead presented was to renew the JFS contract with Sterling Oaks
with Adult Protective Services. They have needed emergency placement occasionally so this
will heip them to have that service when needed. Mrs. Geissman moved to approve the contract
and Mr. Hambley seconded the motion. There was no discussion. Roll Call showed all

Commissioners voting AYE.

The last resolution Mead presented was amending the Prevention, Retention &
Contingency Plan (PRC) for JES. Since they have written sections of the plans at different
times, it was necessary for the new administrator and staff to go through the entire contract and
make sure the same language was used throughout and that it covered their currents needs. He
gave examples of two major changes in the plan: they will not count education towards the work
department, and appliances went from $200 to $400. Mrs. Geissman moved to approve the PRC
amendment. Seconded by Mr. Hambley. Mr. Hambley asked for verification of his
understanding that the major changes were the household expenses applicable towards household
appliances increased, and the short-term educational expenses were changed. Mead said those
were the two big ones. There was no further discussion. Roll Call showed all Commissioners

voting AYE.

Karl Cetina, Medina County Drug Abuse Commission (MCDAC) Executive Director,
reported that he atiended an all-day training seminar on fetal alcohol syndrome disorder this
month. He said there is more and more on the national and state levels where experts are getting
involved with promoting the importance of proper and early diagnosis. Previously they looked
at external symptoms and characteristics to identify the syndrome. Now they have better
opportunities to diagnose it early on and better methods. The Tobacco Coalition continues to
meet on a monthly basis. Betty Barlow with Oakes Family Care Center and Mitzi Kerr with
Medina General Hospital have been very instrumental in developing the Fresh Start Program.
This services pregnant women that smoke. Melanie Woods from ADDS has spearheaded the
youth cessation effort countywide. They have contacted many of the schools and have involved
students in some advocacy programs to help kids to not start smoking in the first place. After
the first of the year the coalition will meet on an every other month basis. The wotking
committees will meet on a monthly basis implementing the programs. Karl told the
Commissioners that Medina General Hospital’s Chapleain Jim Hostettler passed away after a long
iliness. He was instrumental in spearheading the effort with MGH. Karl will be attending his

memorial service today. P 2o F‘ B

Don Whitner, acting Transit Director, reported that Medina County Transit provided
transportation for 1,149 riders on the Medina L, 34 riders in Homerville, demand response had
8,689 riders, and the Southwest Circulator had 152 riders. The total riders for the month were
10,024, and the number of riders year to date is 98,678. Vehicle miles for the month reached
70,384 and vear to date it comes to 695.634 miles. Fuel used was almost 8,000 galions for the
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11/22/04 RESOLUTION AMENDING THE PREVENTION, RETENTION &
CONTINGENCY PLAN (PRC) FOR MEDINA COUNTY JOB AND FAMILY
SERVICES

11/22/04 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF MEDINA COUNTY
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN GRANT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FUNDS BY
THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SERVICES FOR THE CONSULTING
SERVICES OF HNTB ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS, PLANNERS

11/22/04 RESOLUTION TO ALLOW EXPENSES OF COUNTY OFFICIALS

MEDINA COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

%Mzﬁ 4 ﬁu Respectfully submitted,

S oA Ray m.24%- W
Pamela M. Vereb, Asst. Clerk

Patn G Geissm M

tephed D. Hambley .~

P. 8 .+ 8
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Feb 07 0S 01:43p . Cornerstone Psycholagical 3307255792 _ P

CORNERSTONE PSYCHOLOGICAL SERVICES
%1 WEST LIBERTY , MEDINA OHIQ 44pet
330-722-4166 |  Exhibit-44

PATIENT CARE COWUNICATION FORM /D
(This section o be complated by client) '

To the party receiving thig informatian; This infonmation has been dlsclased gy ﬁ'ommmdswhmmnndmdnuqh tected by federul iaw, Pedera)
regulations 42 CFR Pyt 2 prohibit you from making further disclasure of jo wil!m the specific writien conseat of the pﬂ:::: [ whuzt ft pemir:. or a8 otherwise
permitied by such repulation, A general suthorizaion for the relcase of medica! ur other information s not sufficient for this Ppurpose,

Patient's Signature

Dlate_ //:/25/3}/
// Date i

Parent / Guardian

Witness Signature : _ Date ;
Physician’s Name; AT M% . -
: ' DEFENDANT’S
Address _ EXHIBIT
) |

Phoneit '7,3[)-..“_1 l""‘ 3“@

Fax# &SQ- !ull" S\l-ll.ll'l . _. ) C. Ld J.
"‘.'*‘-.'..-“"‘ - o -‘-—.l.“#“_ PO R ==fi._

(To be completed by therapist)
Dear Dr., .

Your patient.,'.\_:_.'f & - _4SS# _ DOB: SRR recenily
referred to Cornerstone, we nope that thé following information will be helpful in coordinating this patients care,

C F COMP, T: :
HIEF MLAIN -: 3 (_’_, et

rd

+INDINGS / PATIENT
STATUS:

Sinceruly, ; ) ;; ; a
%;agﬂig &M(IYDA’/) MIS C’%/”ﬁ
herapigi Name . - Signature : ~ Date
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M3, EISENHOWEA: And that she
qive & varbal statesant to Donna Abbott as part of
how to conduct the sxam. S0 the social worker nocaes
4re in there, but alsa wl:llt ahs told har for the
purposs of medical uuu’unt 13 what he's ceferring
ta and, I think, calavant.

THE CoURT: T'm going to ==
can [ take » look at the report?

HS. EISEMHONWER: Sure.

iProvicding.)

THE COURT: (Perusing
axhinic,)

MR, GREEN: Plus we want to

4rgus that, you knew == I'm sorcy, your Homer.

THE COURT: Go ahuad, air.

HR. GREEN: I was just
Joing to may, we still are objecting to the nurse
praceicionsc's notes, boe.aun it was Lrom someone
wlsa, it wasn'‘t [rom the victia.

THE COURT: Right. What
you'rw saying ls that portlon with regard to thae
lssue of cha statemsnt mads by the child to the
licensed sccial workeg, that =- thara's a psge of it
in hece.

HR. GREEN: Yas.

461
Srate has rested at this time. Ccunsel for the
Defendant, do you have any witnesaes you wish to
preasant at this cimeT
MR. GREEN: Your Honor, at

this time we would move far a Rula 29 dismigsal of
the charge.

THE COURT: Go ahead, air,
pPlease.

HR, GREEN: It's sur balliet
that, one, in cha ™" gOCHD paztion of the caze,
her fallure to tastify asi to the conduct that took
plece herzs, tha balance of it, actually dossn't sven
2atch up with what the allegations aze in the
Complalnt. You know, shié =- Lit's unfortunate, but
the little girl, whan asked did she go upatairs with
Frank, ahe said, "No." That is in evidenca. And ]
think that's == whataver she may havae sald
aftarwards, we've heazrd directly from the victim.
and she said, “Ho.” A3 l:uch as thay want to explaln
it away, this man's, yuulknuu. in jecpardy over
thars, and T chink that portion neads to be dismissed
now,

THE COURT: All right.

Anything from tha !:ia:ﬂ

H3. E213ENHONER: Yas, your
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THE COURT: And ['m losking
at thls, it's Page 7. Lat's asa what elwe wa've got,
hold an.

Ukay. The Court is going to wxcise Page 7 that
you'rs talking about, which is the narrative portion
of it. Is that righe?

HR, GREEMW: 3ince what I
have La -- [ don't hava a copy of the sxhibit. I
only hava what wagy ==

THE COURT: | Show ne what
yau hava.

HR. GREEN: I only have

whit was producad in diséovery.

THE COURT: That's this
{indicating),

HR. GREEN: That looks like
ic. !

THE COURT: : The Court is

going to have this page |'x:u.d. 1 think you'ze
probably right undef thoese circumstances. The rcast
of the reporc's coming in. 1'll pote your abjection
o the rast of it.

Anything w«las frop the Stata?

HS. EISENHOWER: Ha, your Honoc.
THE COURT: ALl cight. The
162

Honor. That's an lncorrect charactarization, 3She
was asked 1f She remasbersd iT. She was not --
4hm wis not asked did sahe -- D0 you remembar.™

I believe that Dr. LeSuza's tesatleony gave
sutficient svidence, along with the remainder of
aslienc testimony to lupémr: the charge in that
nattar.

THE COURT: Anyehing alse,
akc?

MR. GREEN: Your Honor, on
the raps charge, vwe Seliave that the State has failed
to myat its burden. I don't believe thers was any
svidence frosm the victim Rarsel? that indicated that
there was panetration. Thare was no statemant a3 to
Penscration of che vaginal cract.

Or. if you go by what Dr. Abbott said, you could
qo inside, you kpow, she talked sbout tha hyman, but
she talked about the uqlm balng beyond the Rymen.
3o she gave the llptllllﬂ:n that thaze was no physiecal
avidencs whatsosver to adpport this, she only said
thara cen be sapusl sbuse., She did not Say rape.

The lictele girl, I don‘t think, gave any
indicatlon that thers was a zape hars. Sha did not
tescify as to cunnilingus,

And the datss don't even match up with what's in
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the BLll of Particulars hers.
THE COURT: Thank you,
»lc.
Anything else from tha Stace?
M3, EISTMHOWER: Your Honer
the victin tastified that it was ssversl days bsfare
her birthday, which ia REDACTED . The amended
Bill of Particulars ssys the 1st through the 3rd.

In addition to that; zhe said, snd I'm quoting
her now, "His private went ip my prlvste.”
Panetration, howsver slight, we feel has been
Bat,

THE COURT: Okay. Whan a
Court mskes s datefmlpstion on a Rule 23 metion, the
Court has to view the facis of the caas most strongly
against the party makimg thes motion = that is to say,
view tha facts most strongly auain;t the Defandant in
the cane = and weke & dcéqulnatian 83 ta whather or
nat theare is any svidencs which, if balisved by a
Teasonable jury, the 3ur§ could come to the
conclusion thst ths Dafandant committed this offense.
T don't welgh tha sgvidence, it's not a matter of
weighing the evidence at this point, it's datarsining
whethar theze is sufflcisnc svidence for & cedsonable

Jjury to gome to the canclusion that the affenss

1 465
anybody? Do you have anyona you want £o testify
today?

HMR. GREECN: We have one
witnass, your Honor.

THE COURT: That would be
Dr. Read? :

MR, GREEN: ' That would be
Br. Reed.

THE COURT: Let's find out

what Or. Mesd i3 golng to tastify about.

Doctor, comw on up.: My bailiff is going to
swear you in. !

DETENDANT*S CASE
Whersupon, tha ODefandant, to majntain the
i3susa to be maintainad by him, called ons
H. DOUGLAS REED. Ph.0., who, aftar havlng been firat
diuly sworn, wa3 examined and tmatified as follows:
VOIR DIRE
THE COURT: Have a saat in

this chair bhere for a few minutes.

3ir, the reason why I brought you in without the
Jury is, there's an lasue with ragard to testlmony.

With all of the axperts wha have testified in che
1
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securrad.

Looking at th; i33ue of groas sanual inpoasition
in KD SPIDMTIR, the Court cecalls the victim in the
case asylng that she did not remsaber going up to &
toom ip Chippews with ‘hil Oetendant. There was
other supporting svidence, supporting the
prosscution, that such an svent accurred. The Court
balisvas that evidenca, it believed, & jury
could conclude that sn offensa cccurred against
o™ speuserm,

Again, I'm not nzquinq or making a determination
a3 to the uclgp: of the ;vid-ncn or vhather the Jury
should balieve it, I'm waighing whethsr thay could
telieve it, and I think 4 reasopabls juty could
believe that. offense occurrad.

With regard to the }lp- offenze, the Court has
that same burden. I'm making that sama
determination. Based on the tustimony of the victim
in the cére, the Court bellaves that Lhers i3
sufficiant evidence for & ressonable jury to conclude
that this offense may have occurred.

I'll nota tha Dttcngant': sageption to my
overtaling the Rule 29 motion. The Court is going te
pernit this cesa to go ko jury on both councs.

Mow I nead to lnuu.llr- you golng forward with

168
cass 3o far, the Court haz engeged in & voir dire
exsmination just to £lnd out & little blt about what
thay wara gaing to testify about. I'm going te de
that with you,

Again, I'm tha only'ons at a disadvantage here.
Both counsal for ths Stats anc counsal for the
Defendant hava read your repect. I don’t get that,
30 I need to ask you 3 few gquestions,

Flzat, apparantly =-end l'm guesaing = you did
soms kind of an examination nf the Dafendant in this
case and came up with seme concluajens. I nesd to
know & little Bit about #hat you did, what kind of
inforsation you got, how you geot the Information,
juast thosa kind of things, and what ware your
conclusiang.

30 tell ms & 11::1|.b1: about that.

THE NITN!S!; Yas, I spant
asvan hours with Mr. Woad in the Medina County Jail,
and I want through & lot of tha standard
history-taking, I took thres saparats hlatories.
One, a psyshosoeisl historys one, a sesxual bahavier
laventory; and ansther seaual histery guestionnalre
to ses if there was conslstency scross the basrd in
the giving of the hiltﬂrlll. I was avalusting his

Tesponses sqalnst the twanty-five Lndicators of
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M. Douglas Reed, Ph.D. | e hibitmdt

Warren County Forensic Psychology Center

Whole Picture Healthcare

Credentials

1. Dr. Reed is a licensed psychologist who has been in clinical practice in Ohio since 1977; Ohio
License #2347. He earned his Ph.D. in Counseling from the University of Maryland in 1970. He also
earned his M.Ed. in Counseling from the University of Maryland in 1968.

2. He was a counselor from 1968 to 1977, when he became a licensed psychologist.
3. Dr. Reed eamned his B.A. and an M.A. from Wheaton College, Wheaton, Illinois.

4. Dr. Reed is a Board-Certified founding Diplomate-Fellow of the American College of Advanced
Practice Psychologists (FACAPP).

5. Dr. Reed is a Diplomate-Fellow Psychopharmacologist with the Intemational College of
Prescribing Psychologists (FICPP) and the Prescribing Psychologists’ Register (FPPRY): a 450 hour
post-doctoral training program. Psychologists with his advanced training have prescriptive privileges
in places where the law allows (i.e., New Mexico, Guam, Department of Defense, and Louisiana).

6. Dr. Reed holds the Master Psychopharmacologist certification from the National Education
Institute. This certification reflects over 200 hours of post-doctoral continuing education training in
Psychopharmacology, taught by Psychiatrists and other M.D.s.

7. He is a Board Certified Diplomate-Fellow in Serious Mental lliness of the Intemational Coliege of
Prescribing Psychologists (FSMI).

8. He is a Board Certified Diplomate-Feliow Forensic Psychologist of the Intemational College of
Prescribing Psychologists (FSICPP).

9. Dr. Reed is a Board Certified Diplomate-Fellow in Advanced Child & Adolescent Psychology of
the International College of Prescribing Psycholagists (FCICPP).

10. He is a Board Certified Diptomate-Fellow in Advanced Geriatric Psychology of the International
College of Prescribing Psychologists (FGICPP).

11. Dr. Reed holds a Diplomate of the Board in Clinicaj Forensic Counseling, of the American
College of Certified Forensic Counselors, Division of Psychology (DCFC).

He holds seven other specialties within that group:

a. Certified Sex Offender Treatment Specialist



b. Criminal Offender Counseling

¢. Youthful Offender Counseling

d. Certified Forensic Addictions Examiner
e.Forensic Assessment and Evaluation

f. Chiid Custody Evaluation

g. Clinically Certified Domestic Violence Counselor

12. He holds a Certificate of Proficiency in the Treatment of Alcohol and Other Psychoactive
Substance Use Disorders from the American Psychological Association (CAPA).

13. Dr. Reed is a Certified Master Addictions Counselor of the National Board of Addiction
Examiners.

14. He is a Diplomate-Fellow Forensic Psychologist of the American College of Forensic Examiners
(DABFE).

15. Dr. Reed is a Diplomate of the American Board of Psychological Specialties (DABPS). He holds
eleven psychological specialties within that group:

Forensic Clinical Psychology Child Custody Evaluations Tests and Measurements Psychotherapy
Psychopharmacology Family/Marital/Domestic Relations Psychology

Sexual Abuse Behavioral Science Counseling Psychology Substance Abuse Psychology

16. He is a Board Certified, Founding Fellow of the American College of Advanced Practice
Psychologists (FACAPP).

17. Dr. Reed is designated as an expert on the Ohio Attorney General's Databank of Experts on
Child Abuse. (D.E.C.A. List).
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Mothing further, your Honar,
THE COURT: Thank yau.
Do you folks have any queations on the voir dire

ipaue only?

MR, GREEN: Mo, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.
¥as there anything else you wers going ta taatify
ta?

¥Was thers anything else he was golng to tescify
to beyond what I heve hesrd so far?

MR, GREEN: I would
cartainly ask for cercain psychelagical tarms to be
dafined,

THE CBURT: And thess would
be?

MR, GAEEN: Such a3, what
i3 "adjustment dl:nrd-r.i E5 just throw out & temm.

THE COURT: Itts okay,

MR, GREEN: The diagnasis

with Or. LasSure of the adjustaant disorder.

THE COURT; ' Do you know
thoss thinga?

HR. GREEN: Presumably.

THE COURT: What do you da

for a livipng?

481

Ths naxt count slieges & single count af gross
feapal imposition, which asys that on ot about the
1st of August, 2000 and through tha 31st of October
2000, and in Medina County, Ohlo, .that the Defsndant
purposely had sexual contact with K.3., not his
ipouss, or ciussd K.5., ‘who was not his spousw, to
havs ssxual contact with K.8., whe wsa less than
thirtean years of age, whethar or not the Defendant
knew ths sge of such a p:rson.

I'm going to cancluge, with all dus respact,
that the findings and conclusions in this repart
arap't relavant on thess lsaues. They may be
relevant to sentencing, they may be celevant 1f tha
issue vas whether the Defendent vas a paychepath or a
pPedophile or a persan who had soms kind of mental
disease or defect, but the problem i3,
nonpsychopaths, nonpadophiles, pecple with dissasas
ot defaccs, and those without can commit thoss
affanses as wall. 4o it's not relevanc on these
Lasuas,

I'm detarmining, secondarily, in addition to
baing not reslavanc, all éf the information -- nearly
81l of the information ffom which this lsarnsd doctor
has concluded thass findings come dicsctly from tha

Defendant, and from the Defendant almost without
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THE WITHESS: I's &
paychologiat, a clinical psychologistc

THE COURT: Okay. And so
consequently, 1f they were to talk to you about what
an adjustment disorder disgnosis if, you've had aoms
sxparience ang --

THE WITHESS: Yas, alr.

THE COURT: == knowledge
sbout that?

THE WITHESS: Yas.

THE CQURT: ' Okay. Here's

what I'm going to rule - and with no disrespact to
anybody in the courtrocm - tha Cafendant in this
particular case is charged with two offenses. One of
them i3 a rape chargu, which allages that on or sbout
Octobar lat through the 10th -- that's not truse,
Octobar 1 chrough October 4.

MR. GREEN: Thres.

THE COURT: Give nme one
sscond,

Oxay. Octobar 1 through Octobsr 3, 2004, in
Madina County, Ghio, that the Dafendant purposely
angaged in sexual :enducﬁ with = and they give an
initial - 5. L., and that $.L. was le3s than ten years

8f age whan that occeurred,

402
axception, One would asiume in this particulazr case
that the prosecution will not have an cppertunity ta
Crods-exnanine the statements that wers made to this
doctor bacasuss the Defandant ian‘t going o be
testifying; consequently, there's no oppartunity
to test che credibilicy &4f the things that ha said
to you. Ang if you're unable to tast the
credibility of the things that wars said to you,
then the conclusions maay vary. My concern then is,
in addition to the relevance 13sue, tha hearsay
lssue,

3o for thoie Iwasons, the Court i3 going to
nola what you hava sald, "ask that vhat you have sald,
your conclusions and fin2ings, be preserved on the
recard 30 & ravieving court can take & look at what
happened hats and what ['m saying snd say, "Hey,
Judge, you ware wrong,“ and be ab;- te undaratand
that,

1'm also going to have, it you can, please, 3
copy of your report to ba ingluded with the racord as
wall, 1'm assuning counsel for the Defendent would
proffer all of ehe things you've said, That's tha
reason why I wantad to g? into such great detail,
because 1if 1'a wrong, I want somabody at the

sppellatu Leval to take & look and say, "Judge, you
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This is an important cése. I want to maka sure
the decinion T make ls che cight ons and that tha
raasoning for my decislon is transpacent.

it 1s not that you haven't donm a good job doing
what you'ra doing, or thit you'ra nat tapabla of {t,
in fact, jusc che opposite, I £ind just the Epposite
To be trus.

[ do find that the concluslons aren't relasvanc
and that they'ra based oh Hr. Wood's caatimony == or
statanents to you, which can‘t be testsd in this
particular case by an exasmipation.

S0 with that in mind, ! will parmit testimony
with regard to those lssues sf adjustnent cisordar
and thoss other kind of thinga that wers teatifisd to
by other paychologlsts.

Anything furcther?

M5 . EISENHOWER: Yes, your
Hengr. Dr. LeSuze iz 2 psychelogiat, 1 would
l1ika to lodge an abjectisn to that pare, in that
ha has not heard her testlasny, zeviewsd the
files, interviewsd the children, treatad the
children.

THE COURT: That's grest

Ledder for cross-axamination, but I guess I'm saying

95

Do you have & witneis you wizh to call at this
time, sir? '

HR. GREEM: Judge, we don’t
hava any witnesses.

THE COuURT: Okay. Da you
want to go into clesing ;rquum.n liow long are you
qoing to nasd for clnling argumants?

MA. GATEN: | Your Honor, wa
hava sose axhibits te introduce,

THE COURT: Folks, 1'm
sorcy, I nead to send you out again.

{¥hersupon, the Jury exited tha ecourtrocm and
the furthar follewing proceadings were then held in
the ptessnce of ths Court, Counsal, and the
Defandant. ) ’

I¥hecaupon, & copy of a calendar for Dctobar
2004 was then marked as Dafendant's Exhibit D for
putposas of identification.)

THE COURT: Firat, how much
time ars you going o nasd for closing argumant?

M3. ELSENHOWER: The whols
thing, your Honor, probably half=hour, forty-fiva
Bifukes.

THE COURT: Half-hour, is

that about righe?
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she sald thess things, she sdld what chess things
are, #nd I think ft's falr that the other side has a
chance to elicle that ipformation and the Jury can
listan o that.

Bring them L, Chris,

HR. GREEN: Wall, Judge,
let ma make 2 declsion on thar, plaase.

THE COURT: Malt: s minute,
Thzis.

MR. GREEN; Hay T take
aayba five minutes to speak with my cliant and
counsel?

THE COtRT; '

Sursa.
[Recess taken.)
i(Whersupon, the furéhlt following procesdings
were then hald in the presence of the Court, the
Juérors, Counssl, and tha Defandank.)

THE COURT: We're back on
the record in Cass Wuaber 05 CA 0365, that is the
Stata of Ohio wersus Fraak Moad, :

The State's reasted, we've gone over the volr
dire and the tastimony of tha Dsfendant's dactor,
basically made sobe conciusions with ragasd to that,

'

4nd now we'ra galng ta 3se whether thare's going to

be any witnesses for the Dafendanc.

- 4186
HA. GREEN: Your Homog, I
have wxhlbits.
THE COURT: What do you
have?
HE. GREEN: Well, just a

calendar. And, your Honor, wa would ask the Court te
take judicial notice of what October lst, 2nd, and
Jrd of 2004 3.

THE COURT: Give that to
Hizs Elssphover, plaass.

HR. GREEN; {Complying.)
THE COURT: Da you have an
ocbjection on the calendst?

M3. CISETUHONEBR: Yas, your
Moner.

‘THE COURT: What i3 your
calendar objection?

MS. EISEHHOWER: wall, only
becsusa 1 baliave the issus he i1 trying to get at
is that she day or may not hava basn io the prazance
af the Defendant during thoss days, and thara's
absalutely ne eavidance n' hold that thaory up.

1 don't think thera's anything to substanciate
that,

THE COURT: Here's what I'm
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geing to do. The calendsr will not ceme in. I'm
geing te let him sake whataver arguasnta he wants ko
maka with regard to the calendar.

MR. GAZENR: Exhlbit A is
the latter sent to Scott Sadowsky, that we prasantad
in tha State‘s cass.

THE COURT: A i3 tn.

Show me what manth you've got.

HR. GREEN: (Providing.|

THE COURT: What othar
things do yau want in?

MR, GREEH: I think thase
probably have to bs copied bafore they 9o to the
Jury, because of the hlq*llqh:ing. but thece's the
lettar from Tricla cn::h;dl, from Medina County Job
#nd Family Services,

THE COURT: It's hers.

MR. GREEN: That is har
Junmary shest that she provided to the prosscuter
vwhich 13 Zanibit B,

And than Defendant's €, which was the Patiant
Care Communigation form that Dr. LeSure used.

THE COLRT: Any objection,

ma‘am?

M3, EISENHOWER: I have an

483
for the Defendant’s motion for & Rule 295 I will note
cha sase filing from the Court.

Chria, bring them in,

iNhezaupan, tha further follewing proceedings
wara than held ip the pressnce of the Couft, the
Jurors, Csunssl, and the Cefendant.)

THE CSURT: Cverybody ba

seated. We ars back oh the racord in Case Ruaber
D% CA (0365 that is State of Ohlo varaus Frank Wood.

You can all ba seated.

¥e've rsached tha end of the third stage of the
procasdirg) that was the presentation of svidancs.
You've heard all the svidence you're Qoing ta hear
Irom tha Stats and from the Defendant, There's going
to be ne othar wmvidence that's going ta be presented
in this case, All right?

v

S0 wa're going to sove from the third stags teo
the fourth stage, which is closing argumants.
Remambar cpaning stetementa? It was adovt a wesk ago
whan the attorneys steppad in ftont of you and told
you what they would try to prova te you in the case,
and then you'va had the trial, all the witnesses'
testinony.

We're now poving into the fourth stage, whate

the attorneys will, once again, have & chante to
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objection to €. That is & foundstionsl raguirement,
that you examined her dizectly on. and I doen't think
it should 9o to the Jury. It was -- it went to har
purposes tor the sxam, and ~- that was outsjde the
presence of the Jury, and -- [irst of all, I don't
think thay're going to understend what they have, but
second of all, I don't think it's part of what the
Jury should ses.

THE COURT: I'm golng to
lst in C.

HR. GREEN: She testifled
thare vas a referral to --

THE COURT: You win., You
don't hawe to talk anymocrs. It's in.

HBA. GREEN: I just wanted
the record to reflect =

THE COURT: Do you want to
nike 3 proffar for the record? I[*1l step away.

ME. GREEZM: Ha, Ehe
testifisd to the datas that are on the documenta and
what took placs,

THE COURT: A There you go.
A, B, and C are admitted.

Anything else?

At this vime I will nots the renswal of counssl

90
stand up in front of you and tel] you what they think
they have proven to you or not, depanding on the
perapective of tha attorney. This 1s called elosing
arguaents. 1t's important o upderstand that closing
SLQuaants bre not uvidcn;ni they'ra not. They're
designed to assist you and give you an idea sbout
what they think thay havé proven to you.

Closing atguments are pecsuasion. That's the
redzon for closing arquments. Why should you balisve
on& witness and not anothay, or this part of the
testimeny of this witness and net another part.
That's the reasan for closing arquments. They are
importane,

Lach attorney's going toa spend maybs a half an
hour with you, maybe & little longer, probably not
auch longer chan that, and then when that's done they
will sit down and I'11 resd you the jury instructions
which I've preparted. l'%l Feacd thase to you, that's

I
tha fifch stage, #nd I°11 hand them to you, They're
0

in writing so you can review them as well a3 ma

TRading them to you,

Then the aixth lth: will ba youy dellberations,
and we'll get to that,

All right. With that in mind, undatatsnding

that it i3 the State of Ohic that has the burden of
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Q Dld you undezatand this case way within thelr
Jurlesdletion?
A A partion ot it, yes.

HR. GREEH: That's all,

THE COURT: Hiss

Tlsenhowar, anyching slse?
M. ELSENHOWER: Na.
TAE COURT: The court i

9olng to overrule the motlon to suppress., Wa'ze
golng to procesd to trial with regard to thesa
matters.

The aext thing we're golng to zalk & Lltrle bit
About arw tha offansea, all the offensas contained in
the iaitisl indictment &3 issued oa Auguet Jrd. AZe
thite sny supplemental indictasncs?

Mi, EISCNHOWER: Ho supplemental
indictaants.

THE COURT: 30 I'm looking
4t one Falony 1 rape, and one Felony J gross sexual
imposition; rigne?

H3. EIICHNONEN: A life raps,
your Honor, 1t'a & child under ten. tTheee's a
speclilcation in the langusge that indicestws a child
under ten.

THE COURT: AL} right. I

¥
the Jury what the offessd is., #e that they knew going
in,

HR. GREEM: Judge, wa would
4gfes to the resding of the amsnded BEill ot
Particulars.

THE COURT: Thank you,
air.

Whet wa're gelng to do La, we'ss going to --
I'1L calk to the Jury firet, basically Indicating
what the case iy about. I711 havs you introduce
yoursalves, wha you 4fe, vhere you work, whare yau're
from, what this case == I'm sorry, whe your witnessss
are. You can intreduce H‘r Wood.

HI. Wood, you can atand up and say hi it you
wish. That's your-businesa. If you den"t want to,
i€ your attorneys don’i want you ta, you can just
remaln gquist, it doasn't Malter to me. But I want
tha Jury te bave & chance to take a lesk at you to
sas i{ they knov you ==

XA, WoOD;: Ungarstood,

IRE COURTI == juat to kind
6¢ find out who knows wha.

I'm pretty direst with thes about what the canme
Ls abayk. I'sm going to indicate to tham I enpect the

Cdse To take sbout a week, [ don't know that it
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undaratand.
Your allegation then i that on or sbout the lst
of Octobar through the Jist of October --

B3, TIIEWHOWER: Right.

THE COURNT: - 2004, in
Madina County, Ohle, Chat the Defendant ald purpasaly
angege in sexual conduct with 3.L. ==

HS, EISEWHOWLR: Hm=hm,

THE COORTI =+ and it gives
& date of birch and, also, inalcscing that that child
waa less than tan years of age at the tisme of che
comaiasien of che offenes,

HE, ETSENHONEN) e subssquently
filed a BLil of Particulars, your #onor, indicating
== fsttowing down that time frems for thew. betwaan
the 1at and the drd of Occober.

THE COURT: I'm hunting.

Hi. EISEHHOWEA: It vas just
filed ovar a week ago.

THE COURT: Ckay.

M3, Itlllnﬂﬂ'tll Thuts wap one
filed, and then we filed sn smanded one because of &
typo, but Lt baaically aays == :

THE CouRt: 1 jusc want

o advise the Jury -- what I uavally do {1 advise

0
wills it may taxe = 1ittle longer or a little
shortur, but [ think that they should be prepared to
uhdectatand that's whak it's qQuing to be about.

1'11 tall them basicslly what ths cass 1is
sbout. I'Ll resd them the Indictment =« or the
amanded Bill of Farticulars 3o thay khov vhat they
#1r9 looking at.

1*1l eatk tg them sbout tha kind of things Lhat
when I was a prosecutar T falt was importanc and what
way impartant te ms when [ wap & defenss stiorney.
but I could be just shartchanging yiu.

I'm going to give you both an opportunity, when
I get dens, to supplamant sy guestiony to the folks
who ara In the bas. If you address your quastiona
only to those folks, the reat of them can hear you.
i€ v need te, you cap individually talk ts cha felks
in the back latar, Just hind af ses whet I do and
fallod s4 snd you'll be just fine.

Ne go through the saleetion process with me
tirat asking wsch of you if you hava any challenges
for sause. Me do it right there. If yoy do and you
ARE LD come to eidebar, chat's fine.

ALEeT ¥a get dons with the challangas (or causs,
va go through fouy pressptocy challenges. T do it by

found, #0 I'll ask the Atate fitst, "State, your
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But first we'ce going to take & break. Don't
discuss the case among yoursslves of begln to form
OF expreas an opinien about the matter until you
get the instzructliona of law and begin your
daliberations.

Ses you in tan minutes.

IReceas taken.}

THE COURT: Thanks, foiks,
y¥ou all can be aeated.

We are back on the tecerd in Case Nunber @8 CR
0365, Scate of Ohlo versws Trank Wood.

MY, EISJENHORER: Judge, may wa
approach?

THE COURT: Sure., Folks,
g0 an out, wa'll see you in about fiva mlnutes.
Con‘t discuss tha case among yoursalves or begin to
forn or express am opinion. See you in five minutes.

I\lhlnupl.:n. the funl:hcr following proceadings
were than held in the :h;nbcrs @f the Hon.
Christopher J. Colliec 15 the presence of the Court
Caounssl, and the Defendant.}

THE CounT: Yoz, ma'am,

H3. BI:EIIHI:H;EM I apeslagize,
Your Honar. I had ssked Chelstine L2 I could do this

before the Jury came back in. I hid & questlon abour

529
wara then hald in open court in ths prasence o! ths
{ourt, the Jurors, Counsel, and the Defendant.|

THE CQURT: Come On in,
tolks. You can ba llltlé.

I'm going to tey co _zead you theas jury
instruccions now.

CHARGE
THE COURT: Hanbers of tha
Jury, it i3 now the duty of the Court to instrust you
an the law thst applies ée this gasa. 7You and I hava
separate functiona. You decide the disputed fagts
and I give you theae inscructions of law.

Wew, 1t's your swornm duty to apply the lav as I
giva it to you. You are not parmitted ta change the
law or to apply your own conception of what you think
the law should ba.

A crisinal case b.gins with the filing of an
indictmenc. An indictment informs the Dafendspt that
he's been charged with 4 criminal offense. The face
that an indictmant was filad cannot be considered by
you for any purpois. The ples of Hot Gulley 43 a
total denial of cha charge and puts into fasus all of
the ssasntlal elamants of sach of che offensas.

The Dafandant i3 prasumed lnnocant in this casa

unctil his guile is established to you beyond a
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the instructlons.

And the question was that I balleve we're
antitled to an instructién on either the definitlen
of "pasnatration® or that penetration be ingluded as
®aaning “anything, howvever slight, by any object.”
And I wss wondecring Lf we can include that in the
insreuetion?

THE COURT: Surm.  1'11
hunt for #n Instruction for you. 0o you have & cite
to OJ1 that you're going to give ma? Or do you nsed
#e to find it?

M3, CISEHHOMER: Wall, I cap go

tind ana, real quick, 1f'I can go --

THE COURT: I've gat it
zight herce.

M3, EISENHOWEA: Thank you,

THE COORT: “anything,

howevar slight, i» sufficient to complate vaginal or

1
anal intearcourse.” 1Ia that what you're looking for?

HS. EISENHONER: Yes, your
Moner.

THE COURT: All right,
fine. '

MS. EISENHOWER: Thank you.

(Whareupon, the furthez following procsedings

432
reasonsble doubt, The Defendant musc be acgquittad
unless the State produces avidence which convincas
you beyond a reassnabla douht of sach and avary
slemant of the offenses chargad in this indictmeat.

"Asasonable doubt."  Reascnable doubt is present
when, after you've cerefully considared and compazed
all of the evidenca, you'capnot say you're firaly
convinced of the truth of tha chargs.

Reszonable doubt is & doubt basag on reasan and
comAGnh sehae.

Meszonable doubt l» not mare possible doubt,
because averything relating to human affairs or
depending on moral evidence ls open to some possible
of imsginary doubt.

Praof beyond a raasonabla doybt i3 proof of such
character that an ordinary person would be willing te
foly and act upon it in the most iapsrtant of his or
hat own affairs.

Wnat iz "evidence™? Evidence is all the
testimony you got from the wltness stapd, any
exhibits sdmicted during tha trial, any facts agresd
£o by counsel, or any facts that 1 require = tha
Court requires - you to accept a4 Etius.

Evidence ¢an be direct or clrcumscancial or s

combination of bath,
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Direct avidsnce ia the nu.l.unr given by a
witheas who has sesn or heard ths things eopcacning
which he or she tastified. It alss includes tha
physicel enhibits adaittdd during telal.

Clrcunstantial evidence has s mors difficult
definition. I'll try ta define lt for you ths way
that ths law givea It ta ‘ma and then I'i1 stop.

“Circunstantial evidence i3 proef of facts or
clrcumstances by direct svidencs from which you may
ressonably infer other twlated or connacted facta
which would naturally or legically fallow according
to the common axparience of mankind.

*To infer, or ta ml:u an infarence, iz eo reach
4 reazonable conclusicn of fact which you may, but
4re not required to, maks froa othar facts which you
£ind have besn astablished by direct evidence.
Whether an lnferance is nade rests antirely with
you.* .

Thac's the definition of clrcumstantial
svidance. I don't think 1 1ike that definition vary
much, You'va got to abide by it, bur let me glve you
an sxanple of cireumatantial svidence 20 that ysu
understand what fe is.

You kpow what direct evidence i3, right? If a

wiknass sau something or heard somsthing and then

533
back of tha houss asnd grabbed the garbaga can Lida.
I don‘t know Lf you all remsmber, but you don't have
Sleds for heaven's saks, chu'u got garbsge can lids,
They'rs bettas than you can posaibly isagine.

We put our hoots on = coae on, you remesbar,
those wera the boots with the Little snap things, the
big onaz chat had ‘f4ve of sia different snaps, they
¢adw up to here on you (indicating) - and wa ran
acrods tha strest, down Brlardals, down to whare Lt
crosass Lakeahors Boulavard. There's a raally nice
place north of the Bouluvard, it goss down tha hill
to whara the lake is, and we 3lid on our qarbage can
11ds untl) almosz 2 o'clock. Hy parsnts didn’t mlad
too auch because thay colld swe Our tracks. And it
was Eucild L9647 Hr. Montenaro waj ntc.n.l.ng.
everyons's watchling.

It was the best Christmas I've ever had.

How, hare'as my guestlon for yeu. Could I have
tastified by direct led:nc- that it snowed that
night, Christoas Eve? You'rs right, I eoulda‘’t,
Bacauss [ didn*t ses Lt, right?

But is thars eircumstantlal evidence that 1
eould gely on thac it lm::nﬂ Sute. Because
circumatantial avidence i3 proof of factas or

circuastances by ditect avidence from which I may
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32
testifiad te le, that's direct svidence.
Circusmstantlal avidance aust wean soasthing
diffazent, and to wxplaip that te you, lat as take
you back to & situation Ehat happanad to ma when I
was a little boy back in Buclid, Ohto, back in 1964.

I was ten years old asd Lt was Christmastime.
My littls brother Marcus and I, we grew up in a saall
houze. Christmas Eve i3 a big time in my family.
Christaas was important, but sledding was mocw
leportant actually.

And on Christeas Eva 1364, cight befora wa want
to bad, my brothet looked cutsids the windsw and
confirmed what T had sest - which is no spow. 1It's
gelng to be a bad Christmas becsuse we can't ge
sledding.

e pullad tha drlpn' clesad and went teo bed. It
was actually a blanket that we had kind of hung up
over a couple of paila in the window. It was warmer
than tha drapss wers.

The next morning Marcus gets up and pulls down
the blanket - which always got us into trouble - and
it almost blindad us, becausas thars was, that
moraing, Christmas Day 1964, six, freshly=fallen
inches of snow on the ground,

Harcus and [ went ocutside, wa ran out of the

334

reasonsbly infer other related or connscted facts.

What dizect svidenca aa 1 talking about? Well,
thers was no anow the nighc bafors, I saw that; the
next morning theta was snow, I saw that. I could
infer that it asnowed that night. Oo you aes that?
That is an inference that you may make {f you want to
as a Jury, but you don't have to maka it. Whethar an
inference {s made resta enticely with you. You can
decide to make that inferance 8T net,

How, lat me step bléh, now that I'vae defjned for
you clrcumstancisl uldcl’lcl and ['ve given you an
wxsmple. Direct evidence - what the vitnesses ses
ane hesar and teatlfy to - apd circusstantlal avidence
~ what you ¢an infer, as I've deseribed ~ are of
=qual welght. Mo one i3 batter than the other.

Undar the law they're of equsl waight. 1Isn't that
interesting?

Do you zes that t.nnl.l ate the klnds of avidance?
Okay, goed, '

What's not avidence} We talked s litcle bit
‘about this. The lrdictment, the opaning stacemants
of ceunsal, the closing arguments of counsel, afe not
avidence. Opaning au:-n’unn and closing arguments
are alvays interesting, dlwvays fascinating, but

1
they're nevar evidence, cight? The opening
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535
ststementa and c£losing arguments are desighed to
a3sist you only.

Statementy of abywers that were stricken by tha
Couzt, you'rs to disragard. Thay'ss alsc not
avidence. You have to trest them as though you naver
heard them. And you can 'do that, you'rs blg boys and
qirly, you all know how to do Lhat.

You must not speculats a3 to why [ sustalned an
objection to any questlon - pleass, don't do that -
or wvhat tha snawvar ta thit guestien might have been.
That's also not lmportant

tou must not draw sny inference ar spsculite on
the truth of any sugQestion included in & question
that wasn't later answerad.

Okay. 3o what are ysu supposed ta dol This i3
it.

You are the sole judges of the fasts in this
€a3s, the credibliity of the witnesses, and the
weight to ba given to thalr testimony. That's yeur
jon.

To weigh the evidands, you hsve got to consider
tha credibllity of the uitn-nsul, and please apply
the tests of truthfulness that you are accustonsd to
Spplying in your daily lives. Here's what tha tasts

are you that you're to use for mech witness

537
hés a Constitutlonal right not to testify, and the
fact that he did not teatify aust not be considersd
by you for any purposs.

Mow laet's talk sbout the charges. The
Cefandant’'s bean charged with one count of rape and
ond count of gross ssxual loposition. Thess ate two
asparats charges that wiil be describad for you
separately, and you're to consider tham ssparatasly.

“Rape.” The lelnd;nl 1s eharged with rapa.
Before you cap find tha Detendant guilty, you myst
Iiad bayond & reasonadle'doubt that on or about the
1st day of October 2004 through the Jrd day of
Cctober 2004, and in Hedina County, Qhis, that the
Gefendent puzposely angaged Ln sexual conduct with
the child with the 1n1:£;!| 8.L., the data of birth
baing FEDACTED, 4nd that the sald S.L., data of birth
balng m, being less thsn tan yeara of ags at
that time. Okay? Thll'; the chargs.

Let's dafine soms af the tetms.

"Sexual conduct,™ uﬁnt does “senual conduct®
medn? Sexual conduct nc;na vaginal incarcourse
batwesn & nale and & famale, or snal intercourss or
fellatio or cunnilingus bstwsan parsons fegardiess of
2ex, without privilsgs to do so. FPanetracion,

howevar alight, is sufflclient to complats vaglnal or
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Consider the sppearanca of the witness upon the
ttand; his or her sanner-of kestifying: the
raascnablaness of that testimany; the opportumity
that that Wwitress had to ses 4nd to hedr and to know
tha thlngs concarning which he or she testifinds his
or her accuracy of semofy: his or her frankness o
yeu, or lsck of ity his ar her intelligenca,
intezest, and blaa, If a;yr together with all the
facts and circumstances iurroundlnc that witneass’
testimony.

Folks, apply thess Eesta Bo esch witnasg'
testimony and determine the walght you'll give the
testimony of that witpeias You will sasign to tha
testinony of each witnass auch weight as you daem
proper, !

How look, folks, you'rs not required to ballsve
the testimeny of any witness almply because hs or she
vap under eath. You can believe or disbelieve all oz
any part of the tescimony of any withess. Because
it*s your province to datermlne what testlmony i3
worthy of bwliaf snd what tastimeony i3 not warthy of
belinf. Thar's exactly what jurors do. That's your
job,

Hew, the Defandant éld not take the witness

stand in his owa behalf, That's not necessary. He

538
anal intarcourse.

“Vaginal intercoursa™ means penstration of the
penis into the vagins,

“Anal intercourss™ means panetration of tha
Panis into the anal opening of & Man or woman,

“Fellatis® maans & senual act coenitted with the
penis and ths mouth. i

“Cuanllingua® IIJNI‘I saxual act committed with
the Pouth and the femala sax organ.

That's saxual conduct; Ifve deflned £t for you.
It's probably pretty much common sense, 50 now you've
got the lagal definition of jt.

“Purpoasly.” Purpods ro engage ln sexual
conduct Ls an ssapential ;luuunt af the crime of
rape,

A parson acts purposely when 4t i3 his specific
incention to cause a certain result. It sust bs
establishad in this casa that st that time in
quastion thars was p:-.-&: in the nind of this
Defandant a spaclific intention Eo engage in aexual
conduct with the victim.

Whan the asasnce of the offenss is a prohibition
against conduct of a c-}é-&n hature, & parson asts
purposuly if his specific lntention was to engaga in

cenduct of that pature, regardiess of what ha may




s Gt - LISOR  RIPCITERS ol LWL EI). AT

Piat S LABIR WSO RT3 0

11
12
13

1%

16

1]
19
]
%
H
23
24

25

19
i
21
12
23
H

28

339
hava intanded to l:ulplilh by his esnduet.

Purpoas i3 a decision of the mind te da an agt
with a consclous sbjective of angaging in specific
conduct. Teo do an act parpossly is to do it
intenctenally #nd not azcidentally. Pufposs and
incent mean che same thing. Tha purpose with which a
Perisn doas an act i3 known only to himself unlass he
*xpressas it to othars of indizates it by his
condyet .

The purpose with Uhich 4 pef3on doaa an act is
deterained from the mannar in which 1t is dona, the
aesns used, and all the other facts and =ircumscances
in svideance,

If yau flnd that ths 3tate of Ohic proved beyand
4 teasonable doubt sll the essential elemants of che
offense of raps as 1've defined them for you, your
vardict must be Guilty on that charqe.

If you find that the Scate of Shlo has falled to
PIove beyond a radsonable doubt any one of the
essential alements of the cffanse of capa, then your
vardist must be Not Gullty to that chazge,

1'm alaw going to include a Iequest for spaclal
findings from you, and that has to do with the age of
3.L. This special finding resds a3 follows - you'll

sue this attached ta the vardict fomm - it says, “We

, S41
person. That's what aexual contact means.

"Purposely™ was defined for you befora. You'll
use that definicion hare.

Purpose to engége in sexual concact Le an
essentisl elemant of the-crime of gross sexual
imposition.

If you find che 3tate of Ohio provaed beyond a
reassnatile doubt sll the,essential siesents of the
offenss of groas sexual i-positinn. your vardies must
be Gullty te that charge:

tf you find tha State of Ohio has failed to
prove bayond a rll:anlhll. doubt any one of tha
essantlisl slemants of gross sexual laposition, then
Your vardict muit be no:-nuxlty to this charga.

I'm 4120 going te glve you & specisl finding
with regard te that ulaild to the age of tha
putported victim in that particular case. That
special finding will read, "We the Jury in this case,
duly lepaneled and sworn and affizrmed. fusther find
that che victim with the {nitials K.5. was or was not
Less than chirtean yeazs of age at the time of the
coamiszalon of the offends of gross sexual impositlaon
against her.* !

Thiz will be attachéd to the Guilty verdiet

:
form. 1f yeu Cind the Defendant did not commit thia
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the Jury Ln this case, dlily impanaled and sworn and
aftimed, further Lind that the vietim with the
inicials 3.L. was or was not less than ten yaars of
4ge at the tine of the m'ulal."lon of the offanse of
zapa againat har." You'll sake that detsrminstlon
with regard te the speclsl flndings about bhe vicelm
2.1., and ysu'll gircle “waa™ ar "was mot.” It's not
an additional elament, ié'l the jame elament, it's
just on a separata page,

The Defendant is chargad with geussd sexual
imposlitien, Bafore you c.ln find ths Dafandant
Gullty, you must find bayond a reasonable doube that
gn or about the lst day &f August 2000 through the
3lat day of October 2000, and in Medina County, Ohin,
thae the Defandant purpodely had sexual contact with
K.5., date af birth rw“_cm'. who Lls not his spouse, to
have amnual contagt with hia, and the sald K,.3., date
&f bigth E'_"_’i‘.”. wad lass than thirteen yaars of age
4T the tlma of the commission of tha affenswe, whethar
or not the Dafendant knew the ags of such person.

"Saxual contact® means any touching of a&n
arogunous zone of nnn:h-g-, including without
limltation the thigh, genicals, buttock, pubic
region, or L the pcnun:h a female, tha breast, for

Purpase of sexually acowshng or gratifying elther

542
offanse, you won't consider that. It's not in
addicion to tha offense.’ In othar words, I'm not
adding an additional elament t3 the offansze, I juag
nesd it op a separate fors.

You may not discuss or conafder the subjast
of punishmsnt, Youzr duty is confined to the
detarmination of the guilt or innoceance af this
Gelondant. In the event that you find the Delwadant
gullty, the duty to detarmina punishmemt is placed by
law on ma alone. '

You must not be influanced by any canslidepatisn
of syapathy or prejudice. It's your duty in this
Cass to carsfully weigh the avidance, to decide all
the dispucted quescions of fact, to apply thesas
instryctions to your findings, and to render your
vardict aceordingly.

In fulfilling your @usy. folks, your affores
wust ba to arrive at & just verdict, Consider all of
the avidence and mske your findings with imtslligencs
and lmpsrtiatity, and without biass, sympathy, or
Piejudice, se that both t;hl State of Ohis and the
Defundant will feel that thelr cass was fakrly and
impartislly tried. If you keep that in front of you,
you can't 9o wrong.

i
Look, this 13 {mporcant. If durlng the course
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24y “rape” = saxual abuse having taken place
batween SMEDALTED!g pirthday and Hallowesn. Do you
raseaber that? Again, 1{'1 not October lat, 2Ind, or
3rd.

And she didn't say *rapa.* 3ha dosen’t have
“raps™ in her notes.

How we go to Donna Abbatt. And yes, she's
sean » lot of thasa :1305. I probably differ with
Hs. Bisenhowsr an what I'h-nrd on sbout ninaty ;
Pezcent of the cases. That was put in with the total
ol 811 the cases that she awes, of which sha seid
forty percent that :nn':.b- varifisd. Torcty percent,
She had a lot of differest statistlcs for us.

And than she acknowledged, becsuss of the
hisrory, this can ba seauvsl abusa. She didn°: hava &
time frame fov you, she has statements = sgain. that
ahe recelved from a :0:1;1 worker, and she got
statements that wece on & videotaps that shs didn't
@¥en look at - and ahe makas that comclusion,

But T think mest Isportantly, while the
prosecution wanta you to balieve this lan‘c
lmportant, I think it i3'= we'sw In a sariouns eharge

heta - thera's po phyalcal svidencge,

Along that lina, you heard from the officer Ezom :

BEI, Mr. Sarsya. They took in svidencs, imnedistely

513

to coms forward becauss ! heard ar the bank scmethlng

happansd, but I den't uu.n: to file charges against
Frank, I don't want to hurr him."

I find that to be & bit in conflice.

And hers we sre: that'as the only new evidancs.
Wall, you gut ﬂ'xn heze and everyone's
trying to say sha's retlcent. she's thls, ahe's that
she doesn’t went to talk about it, Buk this was the
day she had to talk about it - or yestardasy - and you

had to hear from her. She {3 the dirsct evidance.
¥hen ahe was asked nbout'bulnu upstalrs with Frank,
aNe couldn‘t remember, and aha sald, *No.” She said,
“No.”

3he was brought back in the courtroom, and
311 she did was say, "Do you know whe Frank Wood
is7™

“Yoah, I know who Frank Wosd is,* and she left,

They tried to bolster the testimony through
Or. LeSure and Det. Kollar.

Again, another major missing pleca of avidencs
tor yosu. What did Det. Kollsr tell you he dld whan
he interviswsd K[T"™? Ha recozded her. Whare's the
cqcocding?

M3, EISEHHONEA: Objection, your

Honor.
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Exhibit-52 -
contamporsneoud to the time that it wap discoversd
that anyrhing had happened on these mattresses and
mattreas pads and sheets and clothes, and nothing.
Nothing,

You heard Officer Nollar == Det. Kellar, excuswe
s, He cane In with 4 3esrch warrant to get hia
computas, Dld you hesar any results on tha computes?
Nothing you, heatd sbout that.

¥ou heard that thera wre no findings By McCourt,
by Carchedi - I think that's the name, I'm struggling
with Lt - and the pacple at Akron Children's,
Wothing conclusive, Mo chazge brought by Travis
McCourt, no fugther investigation. The case wai
closed by Ohio Jeb and ramily Secrvices, Children's
Services; it was closed l"‘ehrmry 25¢ch.

Hoching in this case has changed as of that
date. TYou've got pacplae that work with this, with
triminal offenses, with sex abusars; nothing has
changed since that time. Thore's no nev avidence
that has happened in the SEOATD ppunecid g5,
N¥othing naw, :

Then aleny comes Robyn Spencer. And Rabyn, who
still had some sort of 2 talking relstionship of soms
sort with Frank Wood, and was gatting some support

from him, he was halping her, zhs dacides, "I've got

514
THE COURT: Overruled.
Thia is closing arqument, it's not svidence.
You can continue, sir.
MR. GREEN: Yau hesrd him

say thars was one. Where §is Lt? Why didn't you hear
itT Becauss it dowsp't ;.y what they want you to
hear.

Thaze are awful charges to have against thls
mafi, And 33 1 told you In opening statement, ysu
want to make sure in ysuf declision you're right. And
I baliave to find Frank Wood Gullty. ln order to find
him Gullty, you've got to feel comfortable with it
that there's something more thsn stories given to
third parties or second partles or whatsvar. You've
9ot to know. Thay had the opportunity to let you
kpow, but they played with ir, thay moved Lt azcund,
thay twistad it 2o make it fit. They have trisd to
make this thing fit into Octobar lst, 2nd, oz Jrd
that » rape teok place. lHo: gress sexual impositian,
net seaual contact, a :aé-, and you'ra chagged with
attenpting to find that there's a rsps hera,

1 2lan't get out of SA'DACTR) the same cthings

that Ma, Eisanhowar uya'hlppnnw. SRIDACTYD ggid
when thesa avants tobk place, whatevar thay werse,

thag most of the time ah; had har eyes closed, and
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would hawe had 4n opportunlty to take a look at thess
issues without the specter of double jeopatrdy hanging
ovet this case.

But you didn't do that, Instead, knowing what
happanad, you put me Lo this position, and I don't
know what ta do. I dop't know what I would have
rulsd, but I would have made a Tuling.

1's going to deny tha State's request for a
mistrial st this point. I'm going to procesd to

trial in ehis cane. I am mot 9oing to ancumber che

Dafendant’s right ts expalne thess witns
%0 extremaly reluctgntly, 1T fael as if, frankly,
1'v4 been taken scdvantsgs of hare, snd that what's
happensd hers is something that ghould nat have
happened, #nd it should not hava happaned becauss of,
Hr. Stanlay, your behavlor in this oase.

1 don't know what slse to do, T think thac‘s
the right of your sllent in this particulsr cass to
procesd inm this way, ang you've chosen to eontinue
t0 procesd in this way, and to this end, finslly,
it trumps evan ay fralings about what's happaned

h

L
S0 with thet in mind, wa will zeconvens in flve
winutes and procesd to trisl.

H3. EISEMNHOWLR: Your Honar, st

bE3)
be ln a positlion whers I have jeopardy attaching te
this clisnt on this, whefs this clisnt did not have
the oppartualty to have & trial whare a jury mede s
daterminstion as to whathar he's gullty of nat
gullty. That's che teuchstons of what ['m trylng to
do here.

Again, Wiss Eisannover, they put me in a
pesition snd, frankly, you in s pesition whaza thers
are no good cholcea here. [ can't pick somathing te
make this right at this polnt, I'm tzying te plhek
S0usthing to maxe kit the lesst unlavorable eholce,
4nd that Lia to know what I's doing, why ['m dolng it,
what my concetns ars for the rscord, so that any

teviewlng court can zevisw it. I let &

rybody hare
know my feslings sbout this, because I think that's
important, toa, We can all lesen feom this., And
tinally, o take your ebjactions as they come snd to
thou my rullngs on the rezers for it,

We'll bagin in five minutes. Thanka.

WR. ETANLEY: Your Honor.

betore you lravs, could l. have a ward?

T am sorty to have put the Court Ln this
pasltion, I didn't mean to hara this cass or anybody
sies. ARG I can undacetsnd the pesitlon that the

witness would be in, knhowing that 1 hawe besn
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this paint, I would requast == tha Stats of Ohia
requesta, an I'vs statad balors, that Lt doasn't
sixply impact Oanlalle Ssdowsky bubt the next two
witnasses I plan an calilng. MNow, I would reguest
that the Court review tha guestiona that sze going
to ba asked of thesa thres witrasses and etrlke any
questions that say or may not have come or could
have coms from Danlelle Sadowsky's privileged
intormation,

THL CODAT: Lvary question
could coms from privileged informacion.

H3. ELSENHONER: That's corrcece,
your Honoe.-

THE COURT: That'a the
problem. That‘s the pronlem.

M3, ETIEWHONEN: And 1 nasd to
build & record for that.

THE COURT: 1 sppreciate

vhat you're going. I would ba doing exzactly the 2
thing.

1'm golng to, on the tecord, overruls your
sotion and permit him an unfattered opportunity to

cros

SXaning the witness ovar your strenucus
abjsction,

T dan't know what slee to do. I den*t want to

140
iavolved in this; a lat of other people alse, but the
witnass parclcularly, baing Denkells. [f the Coure
wishes, I will step out.

THE COURT) It gosan't
m#ttes fow. T can anly p‘rnunl thres or four things.
You've bean involved in the preparation af the cass.
Ons sssumas you'vs glven your case dirsction. It may
ROt have Baen gpacificelly what Danialls told you.
Yau could have simply said == and 1 did what you're
doing right heze foc slmost fifiean yeara. You could
day, "Look st this plece of Information.* You could
28y, "Call thiz witnems on the phons.” Tou could
say, “Tharc‘s s file TRt anists in tThiz particular
e, Take & loak at the thizd or foutth page in tha
filu.*

You don't Rave to hava givan spacific
information to taint the caie. That's the problen.
The problas I, 1t's unfizgdle It°s unfizable
The problem Ly that your leveleament in the cass,
your involvemsnt in the case wichout disclosure
and walver, by her diaclasurs to the Court, puta the
Dafandant in a situatien in which they have this
Advaniage that in not fizable to Che other side
IE dodan't macter at Chis paimt whethar you're heta

Of ngt. It lan't going Lo make any differsnce,
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(CONTIMUATION OF THE PROCTEDINGS DF THE
ABOVE-CAPTIONED CASE CN MOWDAY, THE 13T DAY OF MAY,
2008, COMMENCING AT APPROXIMATELY %:00 AH., THE
JURY CONTINUED WITH ITS OELIBERATIONS,)

VERDICT
THE ODURT: We'rs on the
Tecdrd in Case Muober 03 CR 0165, that's the State af
Ohio versus Frank Iood..

We began chis trial with jury selectlon almost
sxsccly ane week age. It i3 now 11:2% on the lst day
of May, 2006.

Hy Dalllff has indicated to me that the Jury has
feached a verdict on the two counts in the case.
¥Yhat happans in the next coupls of minutes is &
matrer 9f scme fmportancd, s¢ T nead you to bear with
o8 .

First, did the Jury selac: a foreman ar
faralady, and \f 30, whe 13 he & ahe?

HR. GCARMOND {Indicating.)
THE COURT; 8ir, has your
Jury reached a verdiet?
MR. GARHON: Yas, wa have,
THE COURT: Have you Eilled

I
out cthe appropriate verdict forme?

537
Jury in this case, duly impaneled &nd aworn and
affirmed, furcher find that the victim with the
inicials 3,0, was leas then ten years of ige at the
tina of the coamission of the offense of raps agalaat
her.” And It's dated the sams dats, Apeil 28th,
1003, and it's slgned by the same twelve jurors.

In Count Mumber II, the vardict f{orm reads as
follaws:

“He, the Jury in this case, duly impansled and
aworn and affirmed, find the Defendant, Frank @,
¥ood, Guiley of gross semuai impositlon, In the
mann4 and fora &3 he stenda charged in the
indictment *

And that's dated May ist, 2006, snd it's signed
by all twelvs jurors,

The special finding that [ raquested the Jury ta
-“cnnu.mm:meyhtMlu".ww
Impanaled and pwoen and atficmed, further £ind that
the vlctlm with the lnitlall K.3. was luas than
thirtesn years of sge ac the time of tha comaission
of the offenae of gross sevxual imposition agaimst her
whather or not tha Defendant knew the age of K.8."
And it's datad the Llst u; May, 2006, likew the vardict
in the gross sexual imposition case. [t's alse

algnad by sll twelve jurers.
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HR. GARMOM: Yas.
THE COURT: bid youa hava
your Jury sign those verdict forms in Ink?

HR. GARMOW: Yas, we did.
THE COURT: Did you hand
thoss varsdict forms to my bailiff when you caps int

MR. GARMON: Yas, I djd.

THE CODAT: I'm galag to
taks it over from hare, :

Chrla, ¢an I have the verdict forms, plaase.

THE BAILIFF: Tos.
THE COURT: ! Thanks,

You need to stand up -at this time,

In Caae Mumber 05 CR 0365, the verdict iy as
follows:

State of Ohio varsus Frank P. Wood, Indictment
fer raps, "Wa, the Jury in this ease, dily impanslasd
and sworn and affirmed, tind the Cefendant, frank P.
Wood, Gullty of rape of & child lesa than ten in the
asnnesr and form &5 he stinds charged in ths
indictasnt. "

An¢ it's dated April 28th, 2005, snd it's signed
by all twslve jurors.

I asked the Jury to make a apacial findlng with

Tegard to tha age of the child, and it aays, "We, the
i

EE1]
Doas either counsal for the Stats ar counsal for
tha Dafandant want the Jury polled?

Counsel for the State?

43, EZISCNHOMER: ¥o, yaur Henor.

THE COURY: Caunsal fsr the
Defendanty

HR. GREEH! Yas, your
Homar.

THE COURT: What that means
i3 that the State of Ohlé and the =- I'm socry, both
the State of Ohio and the Defendsnt have tha right to
ask that 1 aak each of the jurors if tha vardicts and
the spacial findings that I just read are thaly
verdicta, 1'll ask you, “Are the vardicts I just
raad your verdiées,* snd you'll answer, "Yes, it is,*
"Me, it's not.™
And, ma‘sa, ['s golng to astart ln the back with
you. '
Ma‘am, sre the vardicta I read your vardicts?
MS. O'CONHOR: 11
THE COURT: Sir, ara the
vardicts thst I read your vardicta?
HR. GARMON: Yes.
THE COURT: Sir, are the

vardlcts that [ read your verdicts?
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sE T Rk Ehat

ing on Hunday, tha

24th day e April., 2006, being o day in tha Apeil

2006 Ters of sald Court, bafora the Hon. Cnfistapher

J. Colller, Judge of said court. the [ellowing

procasdings wera had and placed upon the recoid:

CANIBIT:
Scake s Hacked Identified Admjtited
t = Hanawritcan nataa LE] %1 45
i = petition for Divorce

Scott Sadowsky and

Danislla Zadowsky 127 (4] 457
3 = Gansral Indesz

Sadowsky v Sadowaky 1 12¢ 58
4 = Akron Children®s

Maapital Recards

8. LD a3y 1ié 450
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€ - Patiant Care
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Tha sacond thing relates to a suppression of
evidenos leaus, and we m‘n; Qot as far last Lime as
to discuse who nad the Inluu-n Ln this =ass. The
Court's gaing to aaka. nclt of s bright Line rule
deterainaction that whace there's & warrant Laswed,
4nd that the question i attscking the warrant, that
The burden's an the Defsndant to skl the withaas,

®Whah Thece's no warcant, & wareantless seagch,
tht Burdsn's on the Stata.

The Courf, having wmade & decarmination that
thare was & warcant, masaing that st Least partially
that thare was ne sutherity of the municlpal court
judga to Lasue that waerant alter this case had bean
indicted, that counsel Cor the Dafendsnt had the
burdan of procesding. ¢

%a've hava the B‘ll?lr - who's herfe. he wasn't
hate last time - haze today, We's ajering here in
Chambers == I'®s serry, Ln the jury soom with us. And
58, caunaal for tha Dafepndant, you can ask him any
guestions you wint to lnlonu: 8 SUPPATE your
contantion,

1 will ala3e nete for tha record your amcaption
to mes requlzing yau olnliﬂnn to procead in the
Batter. EKither one &f you, 9o ahesd,

MR. GREEN| Thank yau, your
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PROCELOINGS
iwheraupon, the folloving proceadings wate than
hald ia the Jury toom prior Lo the commencement of
volr olre.) :

THE CouRt: We'rs on the
racard In Case Wuaber O3 CR 0365, State of Onio
varsus Feank Wood. Mo, Wood is present with nis
eounsal: Acate of Ohio ll. tepresantead by Asnlstant

County P Anna Ki 3

¥a'za hare todey just bafore trlsl stacts, and [
vantad to talk sbouc a ceupla of thinga. Tha fiest
thing i», tha Court's had an oppoztunity to revlew
ths documantation previdia to che Court by
Ot. LeBure. ft's In wy chaabers: I'va spant twa
vweaksags looklng 4t AE. At thls tise [°s going to
make the datersipatlon that thers's pothing
axculpatory in thece, Bul what 7 will do Fog counsel
tor Defandant is, I'm golng toe make & cepy of 1t and
Place that under seal and put It with my ceucr
TEPULLAr A% An #xhibit 80 that any revieving court
€an take & look at what T'we taken s look ac. 1If
they make & detstminatlon di(fecant then mine,
you'll have that opportunity to be able to make
that arguaspt on sppeal should Lt get to Ehat

polat.

Momar.
THE COURT: ' 1711 swaar in
the wicness.
Whazaupan., the Dafendant, (O waintaln the
issues to be maintaslosd Q' him, called onm
MARK XOLLAR, who, aftey having been first duly swern,

wis wsamlned snd testifled as follows:

DIAECT-EXAMINATION
8Y bA._ CAtw: )
1] State your namae fof the facord, pleass.
A Harh Zellar.
Q And how sze yeu saployed, Wr. Mallar?
A 1'm a detective with the Medina Clty Polliae
Department.
a And how long have you Bean so employed?
A 1've been in Wedins going cn nins years,
a You're avare that we'zs nese todsy Based upon a

couple af SCAFCh vAELANCS that you scught to have Llssusd?
A Cortect, '
Q AN thay were Ln the jurisdiction of the Medina

Honicipal Cowrt?}

A Correcc.
Q ALl right. And where did tha Defendant Llve --
A Ha livad -~ i
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June 27, 2007

Frank Wood
#504-107 Man. C.I.
P.O. Box 788
Mansfield, OH 44901

Dear Frank:

I was disappointed to receive the news from you that your appeal has failed. I had a great
belief that you would succeed in the appeal as I felt there were considerable prejudicial
errors made during the course of the pre-trial motions and during the trial. It is my
opinion that the evidence failed in several respects relating to the age of the victim and,
also, the conduct, in particular, of any rape. Still, I felt the evidence was insufficient as to
the second gross sexual imposition charge. As far as your request is concerned, I would
suggest that you contact the office of the Ohio Public Defender at 6 East Long Street, 11%
Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215. They do have phone numbers, which may be available to
you at (614) 466-5394 or (800) 686-1573.

It is my recollection that you had a court appointed attorney for the purposes of your
appeal out of the Medina Court of Common Pleas. The Ohio Public Defender’s office is
a State agency that works for the benefit of indi gent defendants that performs these
services on a full-time basis.

It is my hope that you can receive the appropriate assistance and justice can be served in
your case.

With best regards, I remain.
Very truly yours,
F. HARRISON

) ison Green
Attorney at Law

FHG/sk

Executive Park, Suite 230 » 4015 Executive Park Drive » Cincinnari, Ohio 45241
Phone (513) 769-0840 * Fax (513) 563-2953
19 South Beech Street » Oxford, Ohio 45056 « (513) 523-1426
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STATE OF OHIO, ) CASE NO. OSCRO365 ‘
DAVID B, oo - iyl M
Prosecutor, CT_E RI:ZJ!' SRk T
vs. Exhibit-57 ! JUDGE CHRISTOPHER J. COLLTER
FRANK P. WOOD, 3 MOTION FOR DISQUALIFICATION OF
) PROSECUTOR AND FOR RETRACTION OF
Defendant. )  STATE 'S BRIEF OF APPELIFE

MOTION FOR DISQUALIFICATION OF PROSECUTOR AND FOR
RETRACTION OF STATE'S BRIEF OF APPELLEE

Defendant Frank P. Wood (hereinafter "fiood"), directly seeks the
immediate disqualification of the Medina County Prosecutor's Office, in its

entirety, from State of Ohio vs. Frank P. Wood, Medina County Case No.

05CRO365, and for the retraction of the State's Brief Of Appelle that was

filed on January 12, 2015, for the biased and prejudicial reasons stated more

fully below.
On November 10, 2014, Attorney Marilyn A. Cramer filed a Motion To

Dismiss, With Prejudice, On Grounds Of Prosecutorial And Judicial Bad Faith
And Misconduct in State v. Hartman, Medina County Case No. 09CR0229. Within
this brief, Wood's Affidavit and Exhibits (Exhibit-A of this motion), which

reveal that the Prosecutor's Office acted in bad faith, are being used as

Direct Evidence against their Office. Wood's proof is itemized as "Exhibit

Twenty-Two" and his case is cited on pages ix, xvi, 35, and 66 of the Har tman
brief, which can be readily viewed by the eyes of the general public at
http://medinacorruption, blogspot.com.

As a County Corruption Case, Wood is an adverse and hostile witness, who

is eager to testify, against the Medina County Prosecutor's Office. Thig



renders the Prosecutor's Office disqualified by reason of conflict of
interest with a prejudice that prevents an objective consideration of, and
approach to, Wood's two pieces of newly discovered evidence. For clarj ty,
Wood, an incarcerated Pro se litigant who never finished college, must rely
on the Prosecutor's Office to uphold the law and seek true justice regarding
Wood's two pieces of new evidence. Now, through the Hartman case, the
Prosecutor's Office and Wood are fully engaged in direct conflict, and

You cannot depend on that which you are in conflict with,
~Stephen R. Covey, The 7 Habits of Highly Effective People

The Medina County Prosecutor's Office is now in a defensive-offensive
position regarding Wood, his activity in the Hartman case, and his ney
evidence. Obviously, their Office can no longer remain impartial, Therefore,
their Office can no longer maintain the staunch position of an objective
Government Prosecutor: One that seeks truth and justice, and that values
fact over conjecture. The immediate disqualification of their Office, in
its entirety, is the only way to remedy this adverge situation and protect
Wood from being unfairly disadvantaged by such prejudice. Failure to do so
would result in the deprivation of Wood's U.S. 18t Amendment Constitutional
rights to redress of grievances, his U.S. 6th Amendment rights to proceed
Pro se, and his U.S. 14th Amendment rights to Due Process and Equal
Protection. At this juncture, the Ohio Rules of Professional Conduct and
the ABA Standards of Conduct for Prosecutors demand disqualification;
recusal, at the very least.

Unfortunately, Wood has already suffered extreme prejudice in this
situation. The Hartman brief was filed on November 10, 2014. Logically,
the Prosecutor's Office would have been made readily aware of any adverse
witnesses and evidence (e.g., Wood, his Affidavit, and Exhibits). This



knowledge would have come into their possession through Assistant Prosecutor

Jesse W. Canonico of the Cuyshoga County Prosecutor's Office; the Office

agsigned to the Medina County Hartman case. After the Hartman filing, on

December 1, 2014, Wood filed his Brief Of Appellant into the Ninth District
Court Of Appeals to vindicate the admission of his first piece of new

evidence. Then, on January 12, 2015, armed with the knowledge of Wood's

active participation in the Hartman case, Assistant Prosecutor Matthew A.

Kern of the Medina County Prosecutor's Office filed a Brief Of Appellee into
the Ninth District, challenging the admission of Wood's first piece of new

evidence;
TWO _FULL MORTHS AFTER THE HARTMAN FILING!

In light of, or dare we say overshadowed by, the above,

Prisoners have a constitutional right of access to the courts.
The Due Process Clause requires that prisoners have meaningful

access. Drexell Greene, Petitioner vs. Anthony Brigano,
Respondent, 1995 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 16664, HNZ.

Since the Prosecutor's Office can no longer remain impartial, the very

act of filing the State's Brief Of Appellee, and the brief itself, were so
tainted with bias, that Wood was denied his U.S. Constitutional rights to

"Due Process,'’ Equal Protection, amd "meaningful access" (Id). For
verification of this assertion, the State went so far as to accuse Wood of

"calumny' (State's Brief, p.14) in order to goad Wood into giving up the

names of two "deputies" (State's Brief, p.13). These witnesses will remain

in enonymity, for the moment. After all, new evidence seems to be surfacing
in Wood's case on a regular basis.

The State's reckless assertion was nothing more than an attempt to
discredit Wood, his first piece of new evidence, and his Pre-Trial

“Histor[ies]"' (State's Brief, p.13), for his active participation as a



material witness in the Hartman case. What more, Wood's Pre-Trial
Histor[ies] (Exhibits B and C) were officially made part of the "Record"
pertaining to the proceedings regarding Wood's first piece of new evidence
on November 18, 2014 (Exhibit-D), as part of his Notice Of Dismissal Of
Counsel Of Record/With Exhibits, Aug. 27, 2013. Both Histor[ies], their
admission and content, twice went unchallenged by the State. Well, at least
until Wood surfaced in the Hartmsn case.

The prejudice suffered by Wood is further compounded by several factors.
Historically, the State accused Wood of slander after the Hartman filing

knowing that 1) The Office Of Job & Family Services/Children Services sent
their Office a letter stating that there is "no evidence" against Wood
(Tp.342, Ln.6-10), that their Office "closed" the case against Wood (Tp.339,
| Ln.11); and The Montville Twp. Police Dept. ''Terminated" the case against
Wood (Tp.47, La.15-23), all pre-indictment.

Continuing with 3) The letter from Children Services was suppressed by
the State during Triel. Wood's valid claim of a Brady Violation is presented
as CAUSE III, Ground II in his delayed Motion for new trial pertaining to his
first piece of new evidence (Exhibit-E); and 4) The State still cannot
challenge Wood's uncontested Claim Of Actual Innocence {(Exhibit-F); a claim
comprised solely of State's evidence from the face of the incomplete and
materially altered Trial Record.

And their Office accused Wood of slander?

Query: Since action is distilled intent, will Wood's second piece of
new evidence, that was recently filed, receive the same prejudicial
treatment?

Regarding Wood's first piece of new and exonerating evidence, as a
direct_result of his involvement in the Hartman case, it is crysta'l that the



Prosecutor's Office acted in bad faith, filed a tainted Brief Of Appellee,

and denied Wood his
Fourteenth Amendment right to an adequate appellate review.

Drexell Greene, Petitioner-Appellee v. Anthonv J. Brigano
Waraen, Respoﬁent—AppeImt, 1997 U.S. App. LEXIS 77563;
OUTCOME .

Having Constitutionally prejudiced Wood in this fashion,

Ohio Const. art. I, § 16 and U.S. Const. amend XIV guarantee that
no person will be deprived of life, liberty, or property by the
State without due process of law. State v. DeFronzo, 1978 Ohio
Misc. LEXIS 95, HN2. (Greene v. Brigano, 1995 (Supra)).

For reinforcement of the above, Wood filed his Reply Brief Of Appellant

Frank P. Wood (Exhibit-G) into the Ninth District on January 26, 2015,
challenging the State's Brief Of Appellant. Within this brief, Wood cited
his involvement in the Hartman case on page 1 (see also: Exhibit-E, CAUSE
ITI, Ground I). Considering, as of the filing of this motion for
disqualification, the Medina County Prosecutor's Office has made no move
towards recusal. This is not only unConstitutional, but highly

dishonorable.

Wood now has valid Constitutional Grounds for the issuance of Writ and
dismissal of indictment.

Overshadowed by the above causes and conditions, as supported by law
ard fact, the entire Medina County Prosecutor's Office must not only be
disqualified with a Special Prosecutor appointed, but must retract its Brief

Of Appellee, forfeiting any challenge.
In finality, this blatant form of Prosecutorial Misconduct, that borders

on Malicious Prosecution, the prejudicial effects suffered by Wood, and their
remedies, must be immediately addressed to protect Wood from any further
detrimental damages to his hwman and Constitutional rights.



CONCLUSION

The disqualification of the Medina County Prosecutor's Office inm its
entirety, the retraction of the State's Brief Of Appellee, and the
appointment of a Special Prosecutor to Wood's case are requested to prevent
any further Constitutional Prejudice against Wood. Notice of the above must
then be forwarded to the Ninth Appellate Distriet, without delay, to avoid
any impropriety.

Relief is accordingly sought.

Submitted in the eyes of many,

A rne % ® Wond

Frank P. Wood (#A504-107)
Grafton Correctional Institution
2500 S. Avon Belden Rd.

Grafton, Ohio 44044

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that a true copy of the foregoing Motion For
Disqualification Of Prosecutor And For Retraction Of State's Brief Of

h -
Appellee was sent via Regular U.S. Mail on this 2“—[ £ day of /—gécuaﬁ_.f »

2015, to:

Matthew A. Kern/Assistant Prosecutor
Medina County Prosecutor's Office

72 Public Square

Medina, Ohio  44256.

ok D Wood

Frank P. Wood
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FRANK P. WOOD'S RESPONSE TO STATE'S BRIEF IN OPPOSITION

On March 27, 2015 Defendant Frank P. Wood (hereinafter "Wood"') received
a copy of the State's Brief In Opposition To Motion For Disqualification And
Retraction Of Brief. This Brief was filed on March 24, 2015 by Assistant
Prosecutor Matthew A. Kern (hereinafter “Kern') of the Medina County
Prosecutor's Office. As the State's Brief was a dilatory response in an
attempt to avoid inevitability, and a rare opportunity for Wood, for the
reasons stated more fully below, the State's Brief should be rejected and
Wood granted his requested relief.

On p.1 of the State's Brief, Kern claims that since the Hartman case
"is being handled by the Cuyahoga County Prosecutor's Office' that their
Office "has no interest in the case anymore."

Really?
The Medina County Prosecutor's Office, in its entirety, was replaced by

Cuyshoga County for a reason. Has anybody asked the all-probing question
"Why?" Chances are, for the same reasons the Medina Office should be
disqualified from Wood's case. The Medina Office is under direct attack in

State v. Hartman, Motion To Dismiss, With Prejudice, On Grounds Of




Prosecutorial And Judicial Bad Faith And Misconduct, Medina County Case No.
09CR0229, November 10, 2014, with a valid Brady Violation (pp.44, 52-53),
and for invading the Defense Camp (p.65), inter alia. Their Office is now a
Defendant. Kern's claim of "no interest" is truly spurious and should be
deemed a lack of respect for this honorable Court; contempt, to say the least.
In accord, Wood is not just an “adverse and hostile witness'" in the
Hartman case; he is an injured party. As presented in Wood's Motion For
Disqualification, Wood's Affidavit (Exhibit-A) reveals proof that his
Transcripts were materially altered in an attempt to destroy Wood's proof of
innocence, and to cover up wrongdoings of both Court and State; as was

Hartman's (Hartman, pp.22-43, 66). This is a Federal crime. Wood's

Affidavit also reveals Jury tampering (Exhibit-A, ©7-8). As this Direct
Evidence is being used against Kern and friends in the Hartman case, it is

crystal that tneir Office can no longer remain impactial in Wood's case.

Regarding such,

The prosecutor carries into court the prestige of "the
representative * * * of a sovereignty whose obligation to govern
impartially is as compelling as its obligation to govern at all;

and whose interest * * * is not that it shall win a case, but that
justice shall be done. * * * Consequently, improper suggestions,
insinuations and, especially, assertions of personal knowledge are
apt to carry [***] much weight against the accused when they should
properly carry none.' Berger v. United States (1935), 295 U.S. 78,

88, 55 S. Ct. 629, 633, 79 L. Ed. 1314, 1321. (citing State v,
Keenan, 66 Onhio St. 3d 402, 1993 Ohio tExIs 1214, HN2; REVERSED ON

GROUNDS OF PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT) .
Blinded by pride and defense, the Medina County Prosecutor's Office

cannot remain impartial. Kern deliberately avoided the presence of common
sense and logic presented in Wood's Motion to disqualify. Kern also believes
that, despite the existing conflict of interest (the White Elephant in the
room), that there is no need for disqualification. So consider this: Upon

filing Wood's Motion for disqualification, both Judges Collier and Kimbler



recused themselves; the very next day. At least they were smart enough to

get out of the way of tne bulldozer of truth,
On p.2 of the State's Brief, Kern cites White, 2004 Ohio 5200. White

claimed conflict of interest through prior representation. Wood is an

adverse and hostile witness (and an injured party) in the Hartman case

against the Medina Office. Irrelevant to the distinguishing facts of the case
at bar, Kern cites no authority.

Within pp.3-4 of the State's Brief, Kern viciously attacks Hartman
(Defendant), his father Paul M. Hartman, and retained counsel Attorney
Marilyn A. Kramer. Here, Kern accused Paul Hartman of “send[ing] the email
messages, about which the defense complained, and attempted to pass them off
as messages of other people." Kern then alleged that Attorney Kramer was
involved due to her "access" to Hartman's blog account. There are three
events here worth noting:

EVENT 1: If Kern's false allegations were true, then why did the Medina
Office file a motion to "quash" Atty. Kramer's subpoenas to multiple
Internet Service Providers? (Hartman, Motion To Dismiss (Id), p.67).

Fear is a motivator.

If the Medina Office had nothing to hide, they never would have filed
the motion to quash and revealed their integrity. The State has failed to
shine. In all actuality, the State should have rushed to the Intermet
Service Providers to obtain proof of their irnnocence; not try to hide it.

EVENT 2: This was nothing more than a desperate and reaching attempt
to discredit Wood because of "his new friends'" (State's Brief, p.4).

Turning the table, Kern has friends too. As is stands, Kern's office
associates, Prosecutor's Salisbury and Eisenhower, seem to be in the habit

of suppressing Brady Evidence (Hartman, pp.44, 52-53; Wood's Motion For



Disqualification, Exhibit-E, pp.4-5). Kern's reckless assertions: his M.O.,
will be his downfall. You see, Kern is standing on the porch of a glass
house throwing stones. If Kern seeks to reveal any integrity, he's welcome
to challenge Wood's Brady violation (Motion For Disqualification, Exhibit-E)
and uncontested Claim Of Actual Innocence (Motion For Disqualification,
Exhibit-F) in open court. Yes, let's see who's glass house holds up to the
Windex® Stress Test. For once we remove the grime and crud, it will be quite
interesting to see what's hiding behind the glass.

EVENT 3: Kern has attempted to obtain this Honorable Court's ruling on
a material issue in the Hartman case by litigating it in Wood's case,
preventing Hartman from utilizing his U.S. Constitutional rights to Due
Process and Equal Protection, thus denying Hartman and Wood access to a
meaningful adversarial process. This is true, for there has been no ruling
on this matter in the Hartman case. As to Wood and Hartman, Constitutional
Prejudice has occurred. The Hartman Defense Camp will be notified, for it is
clear that Kern sought ruling by this Honorable Court to use as a tool or
weapon or choice against Hartman. And the Medina Office "has no interest in
the [Hartman) case anymore?"

Wood is unsure of the legal ramifications, but to the best of his pro se
knowledge, the State's Brief, as it was at inception, just like Wood's
indictment, is void and should be disregarded by this Honorable Court. Truly,
misconduct has peaked.

Query: Since Wood is a witness and injured party in the Hartman case,
via Kern's argument, has the State invaded the Hartman Defense Camp for the

second time?
Not looking good for the home team.
Since Kern loves to throw around the word "calumny" like bread to the



poor (State's Brief, p.4), let's go there.

During Wood's arraignment, Chief Prosecutor Dean Holman, challenging
Wood's request for bond reduction, which was fraudulently revoked (Motion
For Disqualification, Exhibit-A, f12; Exhibit-C, pp.D-6 ~7), told the Court
that Wood had "two last names," "two Social Security numbers,' and “mafia
connections in Europe.' Now that's calumny. These lies were later printed in
the Medina County Gazette; and that's libel.

For historical proof of this pre-trial media character assassination,
Wood was adopted by a most Honorable menber of the United States Air Force.
He was given a new last name and Social Security number at age (7) seven.
At age (8) eight, Wood moved to Italy (Ghedi Air Base) as a military brat.
Wood then came to Ohio at age (12) twelve. Mafia conmections? No. Then,
much later, as an adult, through the Law Office of Attorney Ronald R.
Stanley (Wood's co~counsel at Trial), Wood merged both last names and Social
Security numbers via a legal action in the Medina County Court Of Common

Pleas, pre-indictment. Brilliant investigative work on behalf of the State.

With no public retraction of statement, calummy and libel have been
perfected.

Here's the irony: Wood corrected a Government agency's mistake, of his
own volition, when he merged both names and numbers. Now, with uncontested

proof of innocence, and an exonerating Brady Violation, Wood will correct

another Goverrment agency's error. Much to his chagrin, it would seem that

Wood has a destiny and that

Fate rarely calls upon us at our time of choosing.
~Unknown

Wrapping up Government wrongdoings, Kern failed as a Goverrment

Prosecutor to mention the valid and exonerating Brady Violation that was



presented in Wood's Motion For Disqualification (Exhibit-E) and impartially

seek justice (Berger, Keeman, Supra). Such a brutually blatant violation of

Wood's human and Constitutional rights by a Govermment Prosecutor, who
throws the bread of ''calumny' at will, went unmentioned and uncontested;
just like Wood's Claim Of Actual Innocence (Supra). Ignoring something
neither invalidates it nor makes it go away. And regarding Kern's willful

avoidance of the matter,

There is nothing more deafening than the octaves of silence.
-Unknown

Wrapping up the valid and premeditated Brady Violation, on Macch 25,
2015 Wood forwarded his Request For Brady Hearing And Dismissal Of
Indictment to the Medina County Clerk Of Courts for filing and to Kern via
Regular U.S. Mail. We'll settle the matter there.

Now for the retraction of the State's Brief Of Appellee.

Yes, the conflict of interest with Wood not only requires
disqualification, but retraction of Brief. Should the Appellate Court
erroneously rule against the admission of Wood's first piece of newly
discovered and exonerating evidence, this would result in a.Due Process
violation on top of a Due Process violation.

Once the Prosecutor's Office is disqualified, per Wood's pro se
knowledge, logically, retraction of Brief would naturally follow suit,
Indeed, this may very well result in a case of first impression. However,

in Kern's own words,

“[t]his Court lacks jurisdiction to take action except in aid of
the appeal. See, e.g., State ex rel. Special Prosecutors v.
J%ges, Belmont County Court of Common Pleas, bo Ohio St. 2d 94,

» 3/8 N.E.2d 162 (1978) (holding that once the notice of appeal
was filed, the trial court lost jurisdiction except to take

action in aid of the appeal); State v. Phillips, 9th Dist. Summit
No. 25408, 2011 Ohio 1348, 98.™ (State's Brief, p.5).




Perfect! Under such extenuating circumstances this Court can now take

action and aid Wood's appeal by disqualifying the Prosecutor's Office and

ordering their Office to rescind its Brief. 1In turn, this Court would be
aiding the appeal by eliminating the bias and prejudice that tainted the

Brief with bad faith. Further, such action would uphold Wood's

Fourteenth Amendment right to an adequate appellate review.
Drexell Green, Petitioner~ llee v. Anthony J. Brigano
Respondent-Appellant, 1997 U.S. App. LEXIS 22366; OUICOME.

In finality, on p.5 of the State's Brief, Kern claims that Wood was

"lawfully convicted." What he fails to disclose to this Honorable Court
is that, post-Brady Violation, with a fabricated case, Wood was unlawfully
convicted by what the Trial Court declared to be a “eynical' Jury (Tp.135,
Ln.7-11). Failure to be tried and adjudicated by an impartial Jury resulted
in the deprivation of Wood's U.S. Const. 6th Amend. right. This further
deprived Wood of his U.S. 14th Amend. right to a fair trial. The United
States Constitution is the Supreme Law of the Land. Lawfully convicted?
No. Unlawfully convicted? Yes.

In harmony, Wood implores this Sagacious Court to engage its powers of
sua sponte, and to set this insolent injustice right.

CONCLUSTON

Wood prays this Honorable Court to grant the relief sought in his
Motion For Disqualification Of Prosecutor And For Retraction Of State's
Brief Of Appellee; to Order the repeal of the State's Brief Of Appellee
that was filed into the 9th District Court Of Appeals; and to declare the
State's Brief In Opposition To Motion For Disqualification And Retraction
Of Brief wvoid at inception.

Relief is accordingly sought.



Submitted with integrity and respect,

Frank P. Wood -(#A504-107)

Pro Se Litigant

Grafton Correctional Institution
2500 S. Avon Belden Rd.

Grafton, Chio 44044

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that a true copy of the foregoing Frank P. Wood's

Response To State's Brief In Opposition was sent via Regular U.S. Mail on
. ST
this 1~ day of Mprch |, 2015 to:

Matthew A. Kern/Assistant Prosecutor
Medina County Prosecutor's Office

72 Public Square

Medina, Ohio 44256,
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

MEDINA COUNTY, OHIO CIaFEB 27 AM11: 05
STATE OF QHIO ) CASE NO.: 05CR0365 DAVID £. a5 4upu
) MEDIHA CLUATY
Plaintiff, ) CLERY 0% “(31RTS
) JUDGE CHRISTOPHER J. COLLIER
vS. Exhibit-59 )
)
FRANK P. WOOD ) JOURNAL ENTRY WITH
) INSTRUCTIONS FOR SERVICE
Defendants. )
)

To avoid any appearance of impropriety, Judge Christopher J. Collier and Judge Joyce V.
Kimbler hereby recuse themselves from the within matter. The non-oral hearing presently
scheduled for March 27, 2015 is cancelled. The Supreme Court of Ohio will be notified of this
recusal and the appointment of a Visiting Judge will be requested.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

The Clerk of Courts is instructed to send copies of the foregoing Journal Entry to the
following parties or their counsel of record.

Atty. Kern
Frank P. Wood

Copies of this Entry were mailed by the Clerk of Courts on Q( 3‘7/ [ S

. J%ﬂrﬂ( / /_ME{( ’;M@V[
DEPUTY CLERK OF COURT
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Exhibit-60

CERTIFICATE OF ASSIGNMENT

The Honorable Patricia Ann Cosgrove, a retired judge of the
Summit County Court of Common Pleas, General Division, is
agsigned effective April 17, 2015, to preside in the Medina
County Court of Common Pleas, General Division, to hear ‘cage
05 CR 0365, State of Ohic v. Frank P. Wood and to conclude
any proceedings in which she participated.

Maureen O'Connor
Chief Justice

15JA0938

VL 1558 PG 584



The Supreme Gonrt of Gkio

OFFICE OF JUDICIAL SERVICES
65 SOUTH FRONT STREET, CoLuMBUS, OH 43215-3431

CHIEF JUSTICE DIRECTOR
MAUREEN Q"CONNOR W. MILTON Nuzum IEE
Exhibit-61

JUSTICES

PAUL E. PFEIFER TELEPHONE 614.387.9400
TERRENCE O'DONNELL FACSIMILE 614.387.9409
JUDITH ANN LANZINGER www.supremecourt.chio.gov
SHARON L. KENNEDY

JUDITH L. FRENCH
WILLIAM M. O'NEILL

June 24, 2015

Frank P. Wood

A504-107

Grafton Correctional Institution
2500 S. Avon Belden Road
Grafton, Ohio 44044

Re: Medina County Case Nos. 05 CR 0365 and 09 CR 0229
Dear Mr. Wood:

In your letter, you mentioned two cases in the Medina County Court of Common Pleas
and inquired if a visiting judge had been assigned. Judge Patricia Cosgrove is assigned to
preside in the Medina County Court of Common Pleas to hear case 05 CR 0365, State of
Ohio v. Frank P. Wood. Judge Patricia Cosgrove is assigned to preside in the Medina
County Court of Common Pleas to hear case 09 CR 0229, State of Ohio v. Matthew J.

Hartman.
Sincerely,
3

Cﬂm szyc
Diane Hayes

Judicial Assignment Specialist
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS _
MEDIHA COUNTY
CLERK OF COURTS

STATE OF OHIO CASE NO. 05-CR-0365

JUDGE PATRICIA A. COSGROVE

Plaintiff,
(Sitting by Assignment)

Vl

FRANK P. WOOD ORDER ON DEFENDANT’S MOTION
TO DISQUALIFY PROSECUTOR’S

Defendant. OFFICE AND FOR RETRACTION
OF STATE’S BRIEF

The Defendant, Frank P. Wood, pro se, has filed a motion to disqualify the Medina County
Prosecutor’s Office from this case. Wood posits that the entire Medina County Prosecutor’s
Office should be disqualified because he filed an affidavit in support of a Defendant in an
unrelated case, State v. Mathew J, Hartman, Case No. 09-CR-0229. The conviction in Hartman
was reversed and remanded to the Medina County Common Pleas Court. The Cuyahoga County
Prosecutor’s Office is handling the prosecution of the case.

Before addressing Defendant’s arguments on the merits, the Court will review the standard in
Ohio regarding the disqualification of a prosecutor’s office. A decree disqualifying a
prosecutor’s office should only be issued by a court when actual prejudice is demonstrated. Stare
v. White, 8" Dist. Cuyahoga No. 82066, 2004 Ohio 5200.

In deciding whether disqualification is appropriate, the Court shall consider 1) the type of
relationship the disqualified prosecutor had with the defendant, 2) the screening mechanism, if

any employed by the office, 3) the size of the prosecutor’s office, and 4) the involvement the

disqualified prosecutor bad in the case. Id. White.
P.l.f3



The crux of the Defendant’s argument is that because he filed an affidavit in support of
Hartman’s motion to dismiss (pending before this Court) that this demonstrates a conflict of
interest for the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office in handling the post-conviction motions in
this case. Since, the Cuyahoga County Prosecutor’s Office handling the re-trial of the Hartman
case, the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office has had no involvement in the case.

Mr. Wood, in his affidavit filed in the Hartman case (Defendant’s Exhibit A), alleges that
based upon his memory in his own trial proceedings, some portions of the trial transcript were
not taken down correctly and/or altered by the court reporter. This claim mirrors the allegations
made by Mr. Hartman in his case. Mr. Wood believes that there is a conspiracy between the trial
court and staff to manufacture or alter the trial record. Wood cites by way of example, the fact
the transcript of the voir dire of his 2006 trial was never transcribed. (See, Defendant’s
Affidavit, D & E).

The Defendant has failed to demonstrate that there was any existing prior relationship
between him and the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office prior to his case. Id White,

The fact the Defendant believes that the reason that the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office
opposes his numerous post- conviction pleadings is due to his filing an affidavit in support of
Mr. Hartman’s motions, is nothing more than speculation on his part. The vicarious
disqualification of an entire prosecutor’s office should be allowed only when actual prejudice is
demonstrated.” Stare v. Vidu (1998), Cuyahoga No. 71703 & 71704, 1998 Ohio App. LEXIS
3390 *10 (emphasis added), White, supra.

The Defendant also moves this Court for an order to withdraw the State’s previously filed
appellate brief in opposition to the Defendant’s first request to file a delayed application for a

new trial (State v. Wood, 9™ Dist. Medina Nb. 14CA0093-M). This Court is without jurisdiction



to withdraw a brief filed in the appellate case. Further, this motion is moot as the Ninth District
Court of Appeals affirmed the judgment of the Medina County Common Pleas Court on July 20,

2015, denying Wood’s first application to file an application for a delayed appeal.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the Court finds that the Defendant has failed to demonstrate that there was a
prior relationship between him and the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office prior to his rape case.
Id. White. The Defendant has produced no evidence that he would suffer “actual prejudice” by
having the Medina County Prosecutor’s Office remain on this case. The Court is without
jurisdiction to order the withdrawal of any brief filed by the State in the case State v. Wood, 9"
Dist. Medina No. 14CA0093-M.

The Defendant’s motion to disqualify the Medina County Prosecutor in this case and the

Defendant’s motion to retract the State’s appellate brief in State v. Wood, 9™ Dist. Medina No.

14CA0093-M, are denied.

The Medina County Clerk of Courts is instructed to mail a time-stamped copy of this

order to the parties listed below and this Court.

This is a final and appealable order. There is no just cause for delay.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

GE PATRICIA. A_'cosﬁov.ﬁ

cc: Defendant, Frank P. Wood, Pro Se, Inmate # 504107, Grafton Correctional Institution,

2500 S. Avon Belden Road, Grafton, Ohio 44044
Assistant Prosecuting Attorney Mathew A. Kern 2 rsz
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On August 3, 2005, a Medina County Grand Jury indictment was filed charging
Defendant-Appellant Frank P. Wood (hereinafter “Mr. Wood™) with two counts: one count of
rape in violation of O.R.C. 2907.02(A)(1)(b)(B), a felony of the first degree; and one count of
gross sexual imposition in violation of O.R.C. 2907.05(A)4), a felony of the third degree.

Mr. Wood was arraigned on August 15, 2005 before the Honorable Christopher J.
Collier, Judge of the Medina County Court of Common Pleas, and entered a plea of “not guilt” to
the indictment. Mr. Wood subsequently retained both Attorney F. Harrison Green of Cincinnati
and Attorney Ronald Stanley of Medina to represent him in this matter.

On April 7, 2006—after waiting months for the State to finally provide requested
discovery in the form of copies of the search warrants issued by the Medina Municipal Court for
Mr. Wood’s home and laptop computer following his indictment and arrest on August 3 and 4,
2005—Mr. Wood filed a motion to suppress the fruits of those searches on grounds that the
municipal court lacked jurisdiction to issue those search warrants once the case was before the
Medina County Court of Commons Pleas. The State of Ohio filed a response in opposition
thereto.

A hearing on Mr. Wood’s motion to suppress was held on April 24, 2006 before Judge
Collier. (Tr. 8-17).! Mr. Wood was present in the courtroom and represented by Attorneys F.
Harrison Green and Ronald Stanley. (Id). The State of Chio was represented by Anne
Eisenhower, Assistant Prosecuting Attorney. (Id). The sole witness at suppression hearing,
Detective Mark Kollar of the Medina City Police Department, testified that he was aware that an

indictment against Mr. Wood had already been filed in the Medina County Court of Common

' There are muitiple transcript volumes filed as part of the record on appeal in this case. The
abbreviation “Tr.” Will refer to the 560-page trial transcript. Other transcript volumes will be abbreviated
accordingly so as to differentiate between them and the trial transcript.



On May 15, 2006, both a sexualty-oriented offender hearing and a sentencing hearing
were held before Judge Collier. (Sent. Tr. 4-19). Afier hearing testimony from Detective Kollar,
who was the investigating officer, the trial court erroneously determined that Mr. Wood was a
| sexual predator and adviseédl Bim of his registration duties under the sexual predator statutes.
(Sent. Tr. 5-12, 15-16). Next, the trial court erroneously overruled Mr. Wood’s Crim.R. 29(C)
motion for acquittal filed after the jury’s verdict. (Sent. Tr. 12). The trial court then sentenced
Mr. Wood to life imprisonment as to the rape count and to a prison term of three years as to the
gross sexual imposition count, with both sentences ordered to run consecutively. (Sent. Tr. 16-
18). Mr. Wood thereafter filed a timely notice of appeal to this Honorable Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. Background

Mr. Wood is now thirty-nine years old. He was born in New Jersey and, as a small

child, was adopted in Maine. His adoptive father was in the United States Air Force, so Mr.
Wood spent part of his childhood as a “military brat” living in Western Europe. Unfortunately,
Mr. Wood’s parents divorced when he was only twelve years old. In 1979, Mr. Wood moved
with his mother and three siblings to Medina County, Ohio, where he completed both middle and
high school. For the past eight years, Mr. Wood has been a self-employed construction
contractor based in Medina County, Ohio.

Mr. Wood is a heterosexual male interested only in adult females. (Tr. 468-77). He does
not meet the diagnostic criteria for pedophilia, because he had no history of sexual behavior with

minors and none of the signs of sexual interest in minors typically exhibited by pedophiles. (Id).



assuming arguendo that the evidence was somehow minimally sufficient, the jury clearly lost its
way and created such a manifest miscarriage of justice that Mr. Wood’s rape and gross sexual
imposition convictions must be reversed and a new trial ordered. See Otten, supra. Appellant’s
fifth assignment of error shonld therefore be sustained.
CONCLUSION
Based on the foregoing, Mr. Wood respectfully urges this Court to sustain his five

assignments of error and to reverse the judgment of conviction below.

Respectfully submitted,

Phone: (330) 725-1199
Fax: (330)722-1968

Counsel for Appellant Frank P. Wood
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

A copy of the foregoing Brief Of Appellant was hand delivered on this 22 day of
September, 2006 to: Russell Hopkins, Assistant Prosecuting Attorney, 72 Public Square,

Medina, Ohio 44256.

CHES

JOSEPH P.SALZGE#ER (#0063619)
Couhgel for Appellatt Frank P. Wood
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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF MEDINA COUNTY, OMIO o

NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS
STATE OF OHIO, . 07AUB3' PH 3: {6
Plaintiff-Appellee, C.A. No. 06CAQO44-M FILED
va. ; Case No. 05 CR 0365 g«,‘g{;}fg Fggﬂ" Fr{
: CLERK aF COﬂRTS
FRANE P. W0OD, .
Defendant-Appellant. ‘

APPLICATION TO REOPEN DIRECT APPEAL PURSUANT TO APP.R.26(B)

Now comes the Defendant-Appellant, Frank P, Wood, acting in pro se,
purusant to App.R.26(B) and State v. Murnahan(1992), 63 Ohio St.3d 60, who

respectfully moves this Honorable Court for am order granting the instant

application to reopen direct appeal for the reasons more fully explained in
the brief in support, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by

reference.

Respectfully Submitted,

ﬂgm_i [4 Wimzl
Frank P. Wood #504-107

Mansfield Correctiomal Inst.
P.0O. Box 788
Mansfield, OR 44901-0788

DEFENDANT-APPELLANT IN PRO SE
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Assignment of Error Ne. I:

The appellant was denied his U.S. Gth and léth Avendment and Ohio Article I,
Section 10 Constitutional rights to the effective assistance of appellatre
counsel, when counsel failed to raise for direct review that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to object to the State's use of subsequent other acts
testimony to mislead che jury in its adjudication on the indicted offense of
rape, thus prejudicing the appellant to a fair trial,

Priar to che instant trisl, assistant prosecutor Eisenhower amended
the Bill of Particulars for the jury to consider, inter alia, if the alleged
rape of Samantha Lazard (S,L), born October 3, 1994 (T,P, 537 Ln, 9-18), occurred
between the dates of October lst thru the 3rd of 2004. (T.P. 18 Ln 13-16)

During trial, rthe prosecutor dintroduced a significant amount of
testimony of an unindicted allegation, of an additiopal rape of S.L., to have
been committed by the appellant Frank Wood, on October 20, 2004, (Opening
Statements - pg. 34; Ofc #dcCourt - pgs., 57-58; (S5.L.'s Maternal Guardian) Danielle
Sadowsky ~ Pgs. 88-105, 114; (S.L.'s Paternal Guardian) Scott 3adowsky - pgs.
187-188, and 3.L. pgas. 224-231),

The appellant contends that all of the testimonr concerning Octoher
20, 2004 was "wholly separate” and "unrelared" to the charged offense, and was
inadmissible as "other acts" evidence per Onio Rules of Evidence 404(B) and State
v. Thompson (1981), 66 Ohio St.2d 496, 422 N,E.2d 855.

In the case at bar, Thompson was charged with G.S.I. of his daughter,
Brenrda Thompson, to have occurred between June lst through September 30, 1977,

During trial, as in the instant case, testimony of incidents, to

have taken place subsequent to the dates being tried, were elicited.

(1)



After a guilty verdict at trial, the Court of Appeals reversed
fhompson's conviction f{citation omitted), which was later affirmed by the Ohio

Supreme Court, wnom Stated:

"other acts™ testimony is relevant and, thus, admissible under tne
"scheme, plar or systen" exception of R.C. 2945,50 where those acts
form part of the immediate backgrodnd of the crime charged, and bence
are "ipextricably related" to the act alleged in the indictment;
that is where the challenged evidence plays an idntegral part in
erplaining the sequence of events and is necessary to give a complete
picture of the alleped crime." id at B36, See also Onio Rules of
Evidence 404(k:) and R.C. 2907.02(D},

And decided that:

“According to Brenda's testimony, appellee's subsequent acts occurred,

at earliest, 10 days after the time allegyed in the indictment., Some

of subsequent acts occurred nearly two vears later. Here... the acts
testified to were “chronologically and factually” separate
occurrences..(that were),.., not "inextricably related™ to the facts

alleged in the indictment,” id at 856-57.

As referenced in the instant case, the State specified the commission
dates for the indicted rape as being between October lst through October 3rd,
2004 (T,P, 537 Ln., 9-1B). The complained of "“other acts" testimony reflects a
date of Gctober 20, 2004, which is seventeen days after the dates that were tried
in the instant matter, exceeding the earliest subsequent other acts testimony
in Thompson by seven days,

Subseyuently, in the prosecution's closing argument, is. Eisenhower
referred to the Oct. 20th allegation as "the last time it happened” and the
indicted charged as "tne First time it happened” (T.P. 495-96 Ln, 23-i),

Here, the State establishes for the jury that the alleged incidents
are separate events, by giving each allegation it's own distinction, hence, "first

time" and "last time", effectively conceding the events to be "wholly separate"

occasions under the standards of inadwissibility as described in Thompson:

(2)



"As a genersl rule, evidence of previous or suhsequent
criminal acts, wholly independent of the crimina)l offense
for which a defendant is ovw trial, is inadmissible.” id
at BS54,
Also, by referring to the allegations as the "[irst" and
"last" time, tne State here invites the jury te view the allegation
as events of similar criminal conduct. Whereby she Ffurther states
in closing: "The Judge is going to tell vou "on or about" (Qct.
ist~3rd or 2004) {T.P. 537-Ln. 9-18), but that's not—-—-that doesa’t
even matter." (T.P, 524 Ln. 19-20). Hence, further inviting the
Jury to forego their responsibility to adjvdicate the appellant's
trial based on the dates a2lleged and specified by the State in the
Bill of Particulars, and to convict the defendant on the probability
of iis guilt on the unindicted, "wholly separate"™, inadmissible
subsequent other acts testimony of October 20, 2004. Concerning
this, the U.5. Supreme Court has repeatedliy asserted:
"Because jurors are likely to place great confidence in
the faithful execution of the obligations of a prosecuting
attorney, improper insinuations or suggestions (by the
prosecutor) are apt to CATTY (great) weight against a
defendant and therefore are more likely to mislead a jurv."
Lnited States v, Carter, 236 F.3d 777, 784 (6th Cir. 2001),
citing Upited States v. Swmicth, 500 F.,3d 293, 295 (6th

Cir. 1974) (quoting Berger v, United States, 295 [.S.
78, 85, 55 3,Ct 629, 70 L.Ed 1314 (1935,

Especially here where:

"Such evidence ( of other acts testimony) 4is never
admissible when 3it's sole purpose is to establish that
the defendant committed tne act alleged of him 3in the
indictment.” Thompsen, supra at B856; see also: State v,
Cotton (1996), 113 Ohio App.3d 125, 132, 0680 N.E.2d 657,
061 (quoting State v. Flamnnerv, 31 Ohio St.2d 124, 60

0.0, 2d 95, 285 N.E.2d 726 (1972},

(3)



floreover, the appellant’s trial was wvoid of any hard
evidence estavlishing guiit and relied primarily on S,L.'s
credibility. 4lso, the appellant did not testify uand relied solely
on his advocute to ensure that his right to a fair trial were
preservéd. The appellant now avers that the trial counsel's failure
to object to the Srate's introduction and use of subsequent other
acts testimony that mislead the jury in their adjudication on the
indicted charge of rape, prejudiced the defendant to the effective
assistance of trial counsel and thus a fair trial. State v. Bradlev,

42 Ohio St,3d 136, S38 X.E.2d 373 (1989, Strickland v. Washingzton,

466 U.S. 688, 693-69¢, 104 3.Ct 2052, 2067-2069, 80 L.Bd 2d 674
(1984),

Had counsel objected to the State's introduction and use
of subseyuent other acts testimony, the jury would have been able
to consider that the dates alleged in the Bill of Particulars,
Ocrober 1st, 2nd and 3rd of 2004, fell on a Fridav, Saturday and
Sunday. Wherebv, both Danielle Sadowsky (T.P. 87 Ln, 17-22) and
Scott Sadowsky (T.P. 185 Ln,8~9), S.L.'s legal yguardians, testified
to S.L being "typically"™ and "traditionally", at Scott 3adowsky's
house every Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Mondav, which concurred
with S.L.'s testimeny that on 3Sunday, Octolber 3, 2004, she was at
her dad's (Scott Ssdowsky) house where they had a party celebrating
her temth birtnday. (T.P. 247 Ln. 7-16) WYhile further testifving
that she spent that whole weekend {Oct, 1st, 2nd and 3rd of 2004:
All of the dates alleged ir the indicted offense) with her dad and

not at Frank Wood's house. (T.P, 247 Ln. 7-16).

(4)



Alse, the jurvy would have been able ro fairly assess,
as the prosecutor stated, "who doesn't remember their tenth
birtnday.," (T.P. 495 Ln, 17-18), wnile adjudicating the likelihood
of Mr. wWood committing tne crimes alleged, when S.L. confirmed that
she was with Scott Sadowsky, at his house, on all the dates in

yuestion. State v, bradlev, supra; Strickland v. Wasnington, supra;

see also Wodge v. Hurley, 426 F,3d 368, 385-386 (6th Cir. 2005)

(wnere counsel was deemed dineffective for failing to object to
prosecutorial misconduct,)

The appellant now submits that had appellate counsel raised
on direct review, from the record, that trial counsel was ineffective
for failing to object to the state's introductionm and use of
subsequent other acts testimony, that the prejudice against his
U.,5. 3Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment and Ohio Article T, Section
10 Comstitutioral rights to the effective assistance of tria! and
appellate counsel would not exist, as tne outcome of his direct
appeal would have been different. The appellant now pravs that this
Honorable Court will adjudicate this issue in favor of MNr. Wood
and grant him a reopening of his direct appeal, or a new trial.

Assignment of Error No. II:

The appellant was denied his U,S. 6th and l4th Amendment and Ohio
Article I, Section 10 Constitutional rights to the effective
assistance of appellate counsel, when counsel failed to raise for
direct review that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
object to the prosecutorial misconduct, where the state shifted the
burden of proof and argued defense counsel's opinion of the
defendant's guilt, prejudiced the appellant to a fair trial.

In the instant trial, assistant prosecutor {isenhower,

in her final summation stated:

(5)



"So what did we give you? We gave vou facts. We gave you
evidence. We gave vou testimony. ¥e gave you things that
dovetailed and fit and that You can rely on. What has
the defense given vou? His opening statements were not
evidence. ilis closing argument is not evidence., And folks,
most imporctantly, vou need to remember that his questions
are not evidence. ilis questions were the very definition
of innuendo, with no evidence ro support them. None,"

(TP. 523-24 Ln, 22-18&),

The appellant contesds that the presecutor's statements
violated ¥r. Wood's .S, Fifth and Fourteenth Amendwent and Ohioe
Article I, sectional rights to due process, where the state caused
the jury to directly consider that the prosecution presented evidence
of guilt, that, as opined by Ms. Eisenhower, was "facts..that
dovetailed and fit and that You can rely on.", in comparison to
the defense being void of anvy evidence to "support" the defendant's
innocence, ultimatels, shifting the burden of proof, The appellant
notes that:

"(C)lourts have consisteatly recognized thet the prosecoution
is entitled to wide latitude and freedom of expression
in summation in discussing what evidence has shown and
what reasonable inferences mav be drawn therefrom." State
ve Smith, 130 Ohio App.3d 360, 720 N.F.2d 149 {Ohio App.
st Dist, 1988),

But avers, that the prosecution’s above yuote, fails to
discuss what any specific evidence adduced at trjal has shown, as
well as, the only reasonable inferences to bhe draen therefore, wounld
be that the State produced evidence of guilt and the defense
proferred nothing to "supporc™ the defendants innocence. Conrterning
such, as an Obio Trial Judge, whom was faced with jureors who felt
and believed that a defendant must/should testify to his innocence,

stipulated that:

(6)



"(A defendant is not required to prove that he is innocent. He's
not required to put on any evidence and if he chooses to follow
that route, (the jury is not allowed, under the law to consider
that against him because the burden of proof is upon the
prosecution.” Franklin v Anderson (6th Cir. 2006), 434 F.3d 412,

422, See also; O.R,C. 2001.05(A),

Whereby the State's invitation for the jury, to comsider the
defendant's failure to produce evidence of innocence, was improper, see 0.R.C.
2938.08, and prejudiced Mr. Wood to a fair trial.

The appellant now contends, that this misconduct was not

isolated as evidence where the prosecutor states:

"The Judge is going to tell yon "on or about™, but that's not -
—that doesn't even matter, She sat here and told yom “couple
of days before my birthday.” And that evidence. That's evidence.
Thgre's been no evidence to the contrary, none." (T.P. 524 ln 10-
24).

Here, the State tells the jury that the dates concerning the
alleged rape of S.L., that Judge Collier will instruct them on as part of their
consideration in their deliberation, "doesn't even matter.” (See Error T for
prejudice), while reinforcing the main argumest, from the primary complained of

quote, that the State preseated evidence of guilt, and the defense has not

proferred any to the "contrary”.
Further, Ms. Bisenhower then states:

"But what you, as a jury, must remember is that the State of
Ohio has given you cold evidence, Yard evidence. Evidence
that you got to see. Evidence you get to iaterpret. Evidence
that you get to judge. .Not questions, mot innuendo, not
imaginary concocted plots." (T.P. 525 ln. 16-21)

She continues:

"No. We have a defense like this. Well, it happened, but it
didn’t happen here and here." (T.P. 524, Ln. 13-18) See,
State v Xeenan, 66 Ohio St.3d 402, 613 N.E.2d 203, 206,
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Concerning the prosecutor's comment on defense counsel's opinion, the
appellant turns to the Ohio Supreme Court's decision in feenan, supra. Td at 203,
where the court reversed inter alia, where the State improperly stated that the
defense was: "(n)ot looking this objectively. They are pail to do that. They
are paid to get him off the hook." Td. at 206, upon which the court concluded
that this comment: "(i)mputed insincerity to defemse counsel, thus suggesting
that they believed Xeenar guilty,"

Mr. Wood now submits, that the instant issue is disingenwous to the
issue cited in Xeenan, id., where the prosecutor made comments that bore directly
upon defense counsel’s opinion of his client's guilt. Concerning such, the Court
in Keenan, supra., further decided that: "Such comment is forbidden because it
is both irrelevant and prejudicial... the personal opinion of defense counsel of
their client's guilt or innocence is no more relevant than the opinion of the
prosecutor, Yet, if the jury believes that, even the defendant's own advocates
think him guilty, that belief will naturally carry great weight into their
deliberations. The jury is also likely to resent defemse counsel's preceived
insincerity.” 1d. at 207. (See also, State v Freeman, 138 Ohio 3d. 408, 741 W.E,
2d 556 (2000) (Stating that a comment that suggests that defense counsel believes
his client is guilty is strictly forbidden.)

Appellant asserts that appellate counsel's failure to raise the issue
of trial counsel's failure to object to prosecutorial misconduct, where the State
shifted its burden of proof upon defense, arguing defense counsel's aopinion as

unreasonable.

Therefore, appellant now prays that this Yonorable Court adjudicate
these issues in his favor and re-open his direct appeal or grant him a new

trial.



Assignment of Error No. TII

The Appellant was deaied his .S, 6th and 14th Amendment and
Ohio Article T, Section 10 Constitutional rights to the
effective assistance of appellate counsel, when counsel fai~
led to raise for direct review, when the prosecutor demigra-
ted defense counsel from personal opinion and associated the
appellants bad character and guilt therefrom, thus prejudic-
ed the appellant to a fair trial.

In the instant case, Assistant Prosecutor Fisenhower stated, in her

final summation, that:

EISENHOWER: You heard Danielle Sadowsky... testify that during

her divorce she was represented by (defemnse co-counsel) Ron

Stanley. There's a reason he's sittring over there.

GREEN: Objection.

COURT: Overruled.

EISENHOWER: Ye didn't participate. We's sitting there to

manipulate the system at the Defendant's instructions, at the

Defendant's instructions to intimidate the witmess that I have

brought in here because he knows things. If Frank Wood can

manipulate the system, and rely on attorney's questions,

imagine - imagine how he can manipulate two little girls.

Twagine how he can manipulate those two mothers. (T.P. 524 Ln.

25 - T,P. 525 Ln 15)

The appellant contends that the prosecutor denigrated defense
co-counsel Ron Stanley, and asserted the defendant's bad character whea-she
stated conclusively before the jury, that the sole purpose of co-counsel's
attendance was to sanipulate the system and at the defendant's instructions to
intimidate (state witnesses), effectively depicting Mr. Stanley as a “hired gun”.

The United States Supreme Court held, "the law is clear, while
counsel has the freedom at trial to argue reasonable inferences from the evidence,
counsel cannot wisstate evidence or make personal attacks on opposing counsel."
(See 1.S. v Young (1985), 470 1.S. 1, 9, 105 S,Ct 1088, 84 L.Ed 24 1), and ('I.S.v
Carter, 236 ¥,3d 777, 784 (6th Cir.2001).

The Ohio Supreme Court in Xeenan, supra., when faced with a similar
situation, where the prosecutor used the bad character of Reenan's friends to

attack Keenan's own character, the Court decided that: "By arguing explicitly

-0



that the bad character of ¥eenan's friends reflected on Xeenan's character, when
that character was wholly irrelevant, the prosecutor igaored the fact that
"(u)nder longatanding principles of Anglo American Jurisprudence, an accused
cannot be ... by proving he ... is a bad person.” {quoting State v Jamison, 49
Ohio St.3d 182, 184, 552 N,E.2d 180, 183 (1990).

The appellant now avers, that the State's demigration of his co-
advocate from personal opinion, then using co-counsel's supposed, bad character

to attack the defendant.'s character by association, prejudiced the appellant from

having a fair trial.

CONCLUSTON

Wherefore the foregoing stated genuine issues that were needed to be
raised in the appellant's direct appeal concerning the deprivation of the
effective assistance of counsel and prosecutorial misconduct, defendant-appellant
respectfully asks this Honorable Court to vacate it's prior judgment, reinstate

the appeal or grant a new trial, appointing new counsel to represent defendant-

appellant,

Respectfully Submitted,

Zed Vi vod

Mr. Frank P, Wood, pro se
ManCY. #504-107

P.0. BOX 788

Mangfield, Ohdo 44901,

Dfendant-Appellant (Pro Se)

-10-



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that four (4) true copies plus the original of the
foregoing Application To Reopen Direct Appeal, with accompanying Brief Im
Support, for the Appellant, Frank P, Wood, filing in pro se, per
App.R.26(B)(3), has been served via Certified U.S. Mail, postage prepaid,
to Kathy Fortney, Clerk of Courts, at: Courthouse, 93 Public Square, Medina,
Ohio, 44256, on this Zith Day of August, 2007.
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Appellant CASENo. 05-CR-0365
DECISION AND JOURNAL ENTRY

Dated: June 4, 2007

This cause was heard upon the record in the trial court. Each error assigned-

has been reviewed and the following disposition is made:

MOORE, Judge.

{q1} Appellént, Frank Wood, appeals the judgment of the Medina County
Court of Common Pleas. We affirm.

L

{42} This case arises from Appellant’s convictions for rape and gross
sexual imposition of two minor children, “S.L.” and “K.5.”

{§3} S.L. was adopted by Scott Sadowsky and Danielle Sadowsky when
she was a toddler. The Sadowskys were married at the time of the adoption. S.L.

is a biological relative of Scott Sadowsky. The Sadowskys also have a son whose

Court of Appesls of Ohio, Ninth Judicial District A-l
VL 54 PG 155
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sexual abuse. As part of that investigation, he searched Appellant’s Medina
Township home. During the search, Detective Kollar discovered a locked
briefcase which “contained numerous files and documents as well as photographs -
of young children.” Detective Kollar testified that a majority of the picturcs were
of “{yloung females.” Detective Kollar estimated that the young girls ranged in
age from “four or five up to probably eleven, twelve.” K.S. was one of the
individuals in the photographs.

{955} Appellant did not testify. Appellant attempted to present one
witness, Dr. Reed, to testify on his behalf. Howeve'r, the trial court limited the
scope of Dr. Reed’s testimony. As a result, Appellant did not call Dr. Reed to
testify.

{956} Upon review of the evidence, we find that Appellant’s conviction for
rape of a victim under age 10 is supported by the manifest weight of the evidence.
The State presented ample testimony to establish the clements of R.C.
2907.02(A)(1)(b)(B), rape of a victim under the age of 10. The State presented
evidence that Appellant repeatedly engaged in sexual conduct with S.L., who was
not his spouse, and who was under the age of ten at the time of the abuse. Further,
the State set forth evidence that Appellant purposely compelled S.L. by force.
S.L. testified that Appellant would come into her bedroom at night and lay on top

of her when he sexually abused her. In addition, Appellant told S.L. not to tel}

anyone.

Court of Appeals of Ohio, Ninth Judicial Dismict
A-23
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{957} We similarly find that Appellant’s conviction of gross sexual
impbsition of a victim under age 13 is supported by the manifest weight of the
evidence. Although K.S. was unable to testify regarding Appellant’s abuse
because she was too frightened to testify at trial, the State presented several other
witnesses that related the story of abuse she had recounted to them. We find that
the State presented ample evidence to establish the elements of R.C.
2907.05(A)(4). The State set forth testimony from K.S.'s mother, Robin
Speelman, and Dr. LeSure that Appellant had sexual contact with K.S., who was
not his spouse and who was less than thirteen years old at thg. time of the sexual
contact.

{958} In this case, the jury heard testimony from several witnesses
regarding Appellant’s sexual abuse of S.L. and K.S. “[TJhe weight to be given the
evidence and the credibility of the witnesses are primarily for the trier of the
facts.” State v. DeHass (1967), 10 Ohio St2d 230, at paragraph one of the
syllabus. The trier of fact is in the best position to judge the credibility of the
witnesses. In this case the jury believed the witnesses’ testimony.

{459} As this Court has disposed of Appellant’s challenges to the weight of
the evidence, we similarly dispose of his challenge to its sufficiency. Roberts,
supra, at *2. Necessarily included in this Court’s determination that the jury

verdict was not against the manifest weight of the evidence, is a determination that
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Costs taxed to Appellant. 0 &Wy

CARLA MOORE
FOR THE COURT
SLABY, P.J.
CARR, I.
CONCUR
APPEARANCES:

JOSEPH F. SALZGEBER, Attorney at Law, for Appellant,

DEAN HOLMAN, Prosecuting Attorney, and RUSSELL HOPKINS, Assistant
Prosecuting Attorney, for Appellee.
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